





NY TROUTER RESOLUTION TEST THAN National of crannalmed gene



.

Ņ

Ż

Д Э

17

0.5

ř

53

Į

DTTC_EILE_COPI

Strategic Passages





George E. Stanford, Jr. Requirements and Assessment Office

October 1987

Approved for public release distribution of committed Naval Clear Recearch and Development Actions, NSTL, Mississippi 39523/5004

Executive summary

i

Selection of the foremost strategic maritime passages in the world is achieved by examining fundamentals of military strategy and contemporary views of global strategy from U.S., NATO, and U.S.S.R. perspectives. This examination discloses six axiomatic conclusions:

• Defense and resupply of NATO is a major United States commitment.

• The economic vitality of the Alliance must be maintained.

• The Soviet Union crucially needs economic growth, particularly in the Far East.

• Since military power is founded upon economic vitality and endurance, the most important attribute of a maritime passage is the nature and volume of what passes through it during normal conditions, that is, the matrix attributes-traffic and peace use.

• The immense cost of man-made passages (canals) warrants them special attention. No arguments have been discovered that lessen their initial value to world commerce.

• Aside from defense and control of the canals, maritime passages affecting the major ports and flanks of Europe, as well as the Soviet Southern Sea Route, are crucial to economic survival and growth. That some maritime passages are important to both the Alliance and the Soviets gives them special significance.

From these six conclusions, 12 maritime passages are deemed to be crucial to policies of the major world powers: Bab el Mandeb, Dardanelles, English Channel, Formosa Strait, Great Channel, Korea Strait, Panama Canal, Strait of Gibraltar, Strait of Malacca, Straits of Florida, Suez Canal, and Yucatan Channel.

Acces	sion For	1
NTIS	GRA&I	
DTIC	TAB	
Unarm	ounced	П
J. 611	rication_	
P_{V}		
Distr	tution/	
tvat.	Lability C	odes
	Aveill hudy	or
1.198	Special	
1 :	1	
	1	
r 1		·

Contents

ê

Ķ

K

X

Introduction	1
Straits and Canals	1
Concepts of Strategy	2
Fundamental Concepts	23
Current Perceptions of U.S. Strategy	
Strategy and Ocean Science	3
U.S. Maritime Strategy	-4
A Beginning	4
Basic Concepts	4
Chief of Naval Operations Viewpoint	5
The Bottom Line	- -
North Atlantic Treaty Organization	7
	÷
	8
The Northern Flank	9
Soviet Strategy	10
Global Strategy and the TVD	10
	13
	13
	15
	16
0 0	16
	16
	17
	18
-	18
0 0	21
	21 21
	21
-	23
	23
	23
	23
Strait of Gibraltar	24
Strait of Malacca	24
Straits of Florida	24
Suez Canal	25
Yucatan Channel	25
Bibliography	25
endix: Law of the Sea	27
	Straits and CanalsConcepts of StrategyFundamental ConceptsCurrent Perceptions of U.S. StrategyStrategy and Ocean ScienceU.S. Maritime StrategyA BeginningBasic ConceptsChief of Naval Operations ViewpointThe Bottom LineNorth Atlantic Treaty OrganizationThe Atlantic BridgeNATO and the U.S. Maritime StrategyThe Northern FlankSoviet StrategyGlobal Strategy and the TVDStrategic SurpriseThe Southern Sea RouteNaval PolicyImplications of Soviet StrategicSelection Process for Strategic PassagesCandidate PassagesPassage AttributesMatrix of Maritime PassagesPassage SelectionTwelve Strategic PassagesBab el MandebDardanellesEnglish ChannelFormosa StraitGreat ChannelKorea StraitPanama CanalStrait of GibraltarStrait of MalaccaStrait of FloridaSuez CanalYucatan ChannelBibliography

Strategic Passages

1.0 Introduction

Ď

Â,

Freedom of the seas is vital to the security of virtually every nation in the world. By weight, 98% of the trade of the democracies¹ is carried by seat any disruption of that trade obviously diminishes the well-being of those countries.

Use of the world's oceans for economic, political, and military purposes is not limited to ships of the Free World; developing Third World nations and Communist Bloc nations also desire and need to use ocean routes. Table 1.1 (World Almanac, 1985) ranks by size the major world merchant fleets as of 1 January 1984. Although the Soviet Union is generally regarded as a "land" nation, the size of its merchant fleet (approximately 10^{00} of the world fleet) belies that perception. The Soviet Union is acutely aware of marine traffic and its economic and political importance. Second to Panama in the number of registered vessels of 1000 gross tons or over, the U.S.S.R. is eighth in Deadweight tonnage (Dwt). Their present merchant marine policy features many relatively small freighters. Soviet interest in ocean trade is underscored by their progress in naval technology; of four nuclear-powered merchant ships in the world, the U.S.S.R. possesses two, of 18,172 Dwt and 13,366 Dwt.

To ensure a desirable future, the Free World must retain the right of free passage through the world's seas under all circumstances, including transit through narrow, welldefined bodies of water under the control of various nations. Preservation of this right entails allocation of appropriate protective resources: economic, political, or military. Since the means for adequate protection are always limited, it is crucial to identify the most important of these bodies of water to assure sufficient resources are allocated to their protection.

From both Free World and Soviet Bloc perspectives, the tollowing analysis develops a rational mechanism for determining the foremost maritime passages. To rark order maritime passages, one must first ascertain those attributes upon which the utility of a passage can be measured; second, one must ascribe a value system to the attributes. Finally, the evaluated attributes are used as a template to tetrieve a set of strategic passages from a larger set. In essence, this development examines an exhaustive list of the world's maritime passages in the context of current perceptions of Free World and Soviet strategy. The mechanism, featuring a relational data base with casily changed parameters, has additional utility, as a stall respond to other logical queries about global mantane passages.

Section 2.0 presents some basic definitions and concerts of maritime passages. Section 3.0 reviews elementary concepts of strategy. Sections 4.0, 5.0, and 6.0 examine current United States, North Atlantic Treaty Organization, and Soviet strategy. Section 7.0 develops the logical selection process, and Section 8.0 lists and describes the foremost strategic passages.

2.0 Straits and Canals

Perusal of any world map reveals that much of the maritime trade passes through constrained, narrow bodies of water. In addition to maritime trade, significant military traffic frequently utilizes these same waterways; demed their use, a nation could be seriously threatened. For example, of the 15 largest United States ports, 9 are located on the Gulf Coast (The World Almanac, 1985) and are accessible only through the Straits of Florida or the Yucatan Channel. If either or both of these passages were denied to United States commercial or military traffic, it would precipitate a serious disruption of national policy. Such maritime waterways are herein defined as strategic passages: a narrow body of navigable water connecting two stretches of the high seas at which the territorial seas of two land areas meet and overlap, whose denied or contested use crucially impairs the conduct of national policy.

Under customary international law (International Court of Justice in the 1948 Corfu Channel case), both merchant ships and warships have, unless otherwise prescribed by treaty, a right of free passage "through strats used for international navigation between two parts of the fidely scale without previous authorization of a coastal state provided that the passage is innocent." Except in this respect, the Geneva Convention of 1958 subjects the territorial sea in straits to the same regime as the territorial sea elsewhere. In time of war, a neutral littoral state may enforce reasonable means to protect the neutrality of its territorial waters within a strait. These means may include mine lay ing and compulsory pilotage, but the strait must be hepe open to free navigation. When a coastal state is at war, it may close the strait to enemy shipping and vessels carry ing contraband to the enemy, and may take all belliectent

Table 1.1. Merchant fleets of the world ias of 1.1 start the4

					Vessel Type	
Countries	Total Number	Total Gross Tons	Dwt Tons	Freight Number	Bulk Number	Tanker Number
Panama	3290	34617	57781	210	· .	4 1
U.S.S.R.	2497	17299	23157	1804	· 9.	
Greece	2454	39090	68612	1110	-7. 72	· · · ·
Liberia	2019	68093	131545	449	2°	7. 7. ju
Japan	1712	36933	61191	1.92	4,4	1 - 144 4 - 19-4 7 - 19-5
U.S.	788	15713	24409	4.57		280
U.K.	685	16921	27251	250	 	287
Norway	529	18458	32470	125	1.5	287 245
All countries	25579	395325	666404	14268	5364	5548

measures that it would be authorized to employ in its other territorial waters or on the high seas. For more detailed research into the legal aspects of straits, a select bibliography for the *Law of the Sea*, published by the United Nations (1985), can be found in the appendix.

Canals are not subject to the same legal regime as straits; their width, length, and man-made characteristics set them apart. Canals connecting the two seas, used only for local traffic and untraversed by large seagoing vessels, are not of international significance (for example, the Baltic-White Sea Canal in the U.S.S.R. and the Gota Canal, connecting the North Sea and the Baltic).

3.0 Concepts of Strategy

As the world becomes an increasingly lawless place, defense of a nation and security of a nation come to share more and more alignments of interest. The military aspects of security are basically twofold: preparation for a general or limited war and the preservation of order. The planning and conduct of these two tasks require a good, workable strategy.

A real strategy is, above all, a choice among alternate ways of dealing with a particular situation or with a range of likely situations. In war, it is a guide for tactical planning. In peacetime, it should be a means of choosing the appropriate forces, force postures, and research goals.²

3.1 Fundamental concepts

Hart³ quotes two contemporary political leaders, who more than any one else in this century irrevocably altered the course of history, to underscore the foundations of political-military strategy.

The soundest strategy in war is to postpone operations until the moral disintegration of the enemy renders the delivery of the mortal blow both possible and easy.

V. I. Lenin

Our real wars will in fact all be fought before military operations begin.

How to achieve the moral breakdown of the enemy before the war has started -that is the problem that interests me. A. Hitler Hart defines strategy as the art of distributing and applying military means to fulfill the ends of policy, concerned not merely with the movement of forces, but also with the effect. For the purpose of my analysis, I have broadened this definition to include coordination and direction of the resources of a nation, or a band of nations, toward the attainment of goals defined by fundamental policy.

A sound strategy is based upon very careful preparation prior to any physical engagement. This preparation includes positioning of forces, quantity and quality of forces, political maneuvering, economic maneuvering, and disruption and dislocation of opposing forces.

Success depends upon economy of force and deterrent effect, which are combined in a defensive-offensive method based on high mobility that carries the power of swift retort. Economy of force is based on surprise and mobility. Railways, roads, and ocean straits provide strategy with speed of movement, but without an accompanying *flexibility*—the other essential constituent of true mobility. Mobility and indirect approach are fundamental to achieving a superior military position.

There are substantial differences between indirect approach and surprise. Surprise in time, place, and force may disrupt an adversary, but may not necessarily achieve the broader objective of the indirect approach.

An important aspect of World Wai I was the decisive part that sea power had played, without any decisive battle at sea, in producing the enemy's collapse by economic pressure. Regarding the Dardanelles, German General Falkenhayn remarked, "If the straits between the Mediter ranean and the Black Sea were not permanently closed to Entente traffic, all hope of a successful course of the war would be very considerably diminished. Russia would have been freed from her significant isolation ..., which offered a safer guarantee than military successes that sconer or later a crippling of charter for this Titan must take place automatically." (This demonstrates the dangers of strategic isolation.) Again during World War 1, the British blockade of Imperial Germany exemplified a grand strategy of indirect approach to which no effective resistance was possible and of a type which incurred no risk except in its slowness of effect. This effect, true to the law of momentum, tended to the speed as it continued, and at the end of 1917 the to the Powers were in a desperate situation.

3.2 Current Perceptions of U.S. Strategy

Dunn and Staudenmaier⁴ recently examined American strategy. Currently, United States defense policymakers are debating the merits of two competing strategies, continentalist and maritime, to determine whether one or the other can provide a remedy for a basic strategic dilemma. That is, how can the United States protect its interests in Europe without placing Free World interests outside Europe at risk and simultaneously avoid nuclear conflict? Although neither concept is prevailing at present, the outcome will establish national security foundations well into the next century.

Supporters of both concepts agree on one point: the strategic environment has changed dramatically in recent years; consequently, United States policy and concepts must be reexamined. Four factors support this conclusion.

• The United States no longer surpasses the rest of the world as a nuclear power.

• Soviet conventional military capabilities have improved markedly during the past two decades.

• The United States is no longer the world's unchallenged economic or political power.

• Traditional alliance structures have weakened as the United States and its allies have become increasingly dependent upon critical resources from politically unstable Third World areas.

The maritime strategy features three variants: the "official" Navy position articulated by Secretary of the Navy, John Lehman; the "manipulative" version; and the "unilateralist" version. In the Navy's view, a three-ocean fleet of 600 ships will achieve naval superiority over the Soviet Union and permit simultaneous operations in all major theaters if global war should occur. Possessing this capability, the United States fleet could project military power against a hostile shore and attack the Soviet Navy in its major ports on the Kola Peninsula and the Far East maritime provinces. This part of military strategy is called horizontal escalation. Horizontal escalation is founded upon three premises:

• The United States lacks the capability to defeat Soviet forces in areas where the Soviet Union might attempt to use its military power in the coming decade (for example, Southwest Asia).

• The Soviet Union is more brazen and willing to initiate military actions to threaten Free World interests than in the past. (This results from the United States losing vertical escalation dominance.)

• A strategy of horizontal escalation increases United States options. (That is, policymakers will not be linked inextricably to the event and place of Soviet aggression.) Success of the maritime strategy is linked to three factors, suitability, feasibility, and acceptability. This strategy envisions the destruction or neutralization of the Soviet fleet as a proper military objective, allowing the United States to project its land, sea, and air power at the time and place of its choosing. Thus, Free World in teresto will be protected.

Strategies do not exist in a vacuum, the very existence of a strategy contirms the presence of another, opposing strategy. Since the development of these strategies is interdependent, it is necessary to examine both. Consistent with our definition of strategic pastages, it is necessary to examine both United States and Soviet naval strategies to determine the crucial passages, whose use or denial could affect significantly the outcome of a global conflict.

Strategic passages are major elements of United States, NATO, and Soviet strategy. The essence of the current United States maritime strategy is global vigilance and commitment, which entails a massive naval effort. To fulfill effectively the ever-increasing requirements of this strategy, the United States Navy must function with braited resources. Success will depend upon innovative operations that include effective exploitation of the maritime environment.

3.3 Strategy and Ocean Science

The question of how well the United States can implement a chosen strategy⁵ must be placed in the context of such contemporary issues as

- our perceived national security interests,
- the competitors for and threats to those interests.

• the multilateral set of military and economic power balances existing today, and

• the limitations imposed by current and prospective technology. (This fourth issue is of particular interest to research and development organizations.)

Combat capability (the ability to achieve a specified wartime objective) results from the aggregation of four attributes:

• force structure—the numbers, size, and composition of the combat and support units that comprise the detense forces;

• modernization—the technical sophistication of forces, units, weapons systems, and equipment;

• readiness—the ability of a force, unit, weapons systems, or equipment to deliver the outputs for which it was designed; and

• sustainability—the "staying power" of torces, units, weapons systems, and equipment.

Combat readiness is also linked to strategic mobility. With cultural, economic, and political bonds extending across several oceans, the naval role in any national strategy is crucial. Current naval strategy focuses upon deterrence of war, particularly nuclear war. One aspect of this deterrence is the deployment of ballistic missile submannes, conversely, security against nuclear attack requires since bance of intruders and vigilance in all wate ways and ports. Such monitoring includes all forms of antisabiliarine and mine detection, as well as inspection of any unscheduled aircraft. Coping with Third World action: adds another dimension to this immense security task. Mining in the Red Sea and air attacks in the Persian Guit apply demonstrate the vulnerability of shipping to terrorism and local conflicts.

Alluded to previously, successful implementation of the maritime portion of a national strategy will depend upon effective development and use of ocean science and technology. The Secretary of the Navy, John Lehman, fully appreciates the need for this ocean science support: "Of all the nine principles of maritime power, geography is the most determinant, and geography overwhelmingly favors the Free World alliance."⁶

In a major policy statement.² Chief of Naval Operations, Admiral J. D. Watkins, candidly declares, "The impact of the ocean environment upon tactical and strategic forces and their operations and system performance must be understood and accounted for to most effectively employ our Navy."

Among several policy points. Admiral Watkins stresses the need to

• "develop sensing, data assimilation, and distribution capabilities to describe the *operating environment* to our naval forces in global near real-time basis by year 1995," and

• "consider appropriate *environmental factors* in Navy weapons systems from early design through test and evaluation to full operational capability."

An idealistic goal would be to obtain exhaustive environmental information covering all areas of the globe; realistically, resources will never be available to achieve this goal. A practical approach to the problem allocates scarce resources to measure and comprehend the ocean environment by partitioning and canking the ocean areas. Maritime passages must rank very high, as vessel interdiction probabilities will be directly proportional to traffic density. This line of reasoning establishes the need for the following inquiry, namely, where are the foremost passages in the world, of vital importance to all maritime powers?

4.0 U.S. Maritime Strategy

Current U.S. Navy policy centers upon the Maritime Strategy, which in turn, adheres tully to NATO strategy, that is, the defense and resupply of Europe. Adequate defense of Europe entails containment of Soviet thrusts upon both the northern and the southern flanks of Europe.

Although a maritime power, the United States has lacked a coherent national ocean policy with a well defined naval strategy component. According to an analysis by Stavridis," only token national ocean policy planning has occurred, and it has been sporadic and generally tacking in government support. Stavridis points out, "If is not the lack of ocean policies that is the issue, rather the problem is the lack of a comprehensive approach to setting ocean policies." In peacetime, is so difficult to quantify and character the extent to which national security goals are affected by the oceanborne movement of critical goods." Although no supplies need be moved to support military actions, critical materials must be received during peacetime to permit preparations for way, as well as to supply the domestic economy. One example of the present U.S. pelicy (or lack of it) is the lack of a U.S. dry bulk fleet; currently, more than 96% of the dry bulk commodities imported by the United States are transported by foreign-flag ships.

The traditional role of the U.S. Navy includes four major tasks: sea control, power projection, strategic deterrence, and naval presence. Naval strategy is the large-scale planning undertaken to tulfill established and defined national policies. As the United States becomes more involved in ocean activity, naval strategy will likewise be more involved with broader issues of regional ocean policy.

4.1 A Beginning

Shortly after the beginning of the first Reagan administration, Secretary of the Navy, John Lehman, remarked¹⁰ that the new administration was committed to a major shift in naval strategy from defensive deployment of approximately 400 ships to forward defense with 600-plus vessels to destroy Soviet vessels near their home ports. Later in 1982, he reiterated the point, "What I have said is that we have to be able to gain control of the Norwegian Sea. First, you've got to go up there with submarines and you'll need land-based air support. But ultimately you've got to be able to support Norway and prevent Norway from being used as a main operating base against NATO."

More recently, in February 1984,⁶ Secretary Lehman laid down "Nine Principles for the Future of American Maritime Power"¹

- Coherent, realistic national strategy
- Strong national will
- Character of government institutions
- Superior military leadership
- Adequate military material strength
- Superior allied naval forces
- Integration of specific geography and naval strategy
- Lorward naval employment strategy
- Sealift

In the context of examining the why and where of strategic passages, the last three principles are of oncern NATO community require both shipping or alatt) and naval presence (forward naval employment strategy). These commitments can be effected more economically transma appreciation, and influention of area, geography, and oceanography, porticularly at chose points and intragic passages.

4.2 Basic Concepts

The maritimes of a second strength reaction we complete independent second seco

from above. It has, however, three new features:

- It is explicit.
- It is a choice from among many ideas.
- It is intended to be a long-term choice.

Strategy serves three related purposes:

• It is the basis for a choice of programs.

• It is a basis for justifying the Navy's choices to the U.S. defense establishment and to the U.S. Government. If future wars never escalate to nuclear use (as most Americans believe), such naval contributions as strategic mobility and the security of sea lanes will become increasingly important in a protracted war. For that matter, the sea lanes will serve to preserve the security of the West's global industrial base, which will become a vital wartime priority as the war continues.

• It helps make the Navy's own operations and its own thinking more coherent.

The new strategy demands increased attention to such issues as interoperability and commonality of communication links, both interservice and interallied. Today's political situation demands three major capabilities from the Navy, to be achieved simultaneously and within severe limitations on its resources:

• Direct attack on Soviet forces. The forward offense posture of the new maritime strategy draws Soviet threats away from the sea lanes by forcing the Soviets to defend their SSBN force, surface forces, and land bases. By moving into areas the Soviets consider vital, U.S. forces might tie down the Soviets or force them into unprofitable engagements.

• Protection of sea lanes. A major tenet of sea lane protection is air superiority, which must be provided by sea-based aircraft to be effective (i.e., reaction time is crucial). So much of the West's industrial base is now located in East Asia that the defense of that region may be linked inextricably with the defense of Europe.

• Projection of power into the Third World. Although the main United States planning scenario remains a NATO war, warfare is more likely to occur in the Third World. (Witness the Falklands and the Persian Gulf.)

, î

The maritime strategy is predicated upon global conflict and forward deployment of Alliance forces. This strategy is dedicated to deterrance; it is cost-effective, since history has demonstrated that prevention is far cheaper than the cure for almost any circumstance. Consequently, these forces will be dispersed and only limited resources will be available in any particular theater of operations. Maximum effectiveness must be achieved for all deployed systems Robust design and adequate operator training are necessary. In addition, the ability to effectively operate in a variety of environments is essential. This ability is linked to comprehension and utilization of diverse oceanographic factors. Comprehension derives from sound theory and experimental verification programs, both expensive in resources. Since resources are limited, they must be focused upon regions of crucial importance in naval warfare, namely, strategic passages.

4.3 Chief of Naval Operations Viewpoint

Admiral J. D. Watkins has placed U.S. maritime strategy in a proper perspective with six unambiguous statements:¹¹

- It is a global strategy.
- It is a forward strategy.
- It is a *deterrent* strategy.
- It is an *alliance* strategy.
- It is a *flexible* strategy.
- It is a nonnuclear strategy.

This maritime strategy complements the overall strategy, which is founded on three pillars: *deterrence*, *forward defense*, and *alliance* solidarity.

Preparation for global war is the critical element in ensuring deterrence, but U.S. peacetime operations and response in time of crisis are also crucial contributions in deterrence and stability; that is, Maritime Strategy is a stability-seeking, status quo policy.

Today, the continuing and widespread existence of localized conflicts and crises, mostly in the Third World, often have global implications. These conflicts and other crises with the potential to break into hostilities frequently involve U. S. and Allied interests. Transcending the interests of states directly involved, these confrontations often serve as backdrop for potentially more serious conflicts between major powers. A fundamental component of the nation's success in deterring war with the Soviet Union depends upon United States' ability to stabilize and control escalation in Third World crises.

The CNO points out that the U.S. Navy devotes much of its effort to maintaining this stability. Potential crises and the aftermath of crises have increasingly defined the location and character of forward deployments. The U.S. Navy maintains a continual presence in the Indian Ocean, the Persian Gulf, and the Caribbean, as well as the more traditional forward deployments to the Mediterranean and the Western Pacific. U.S. interests and commitments are worldwide, and increasingly focus on the Third World. U.S. economy and security require oil from the Persian Gulf and Caribbean Sea, and strategic minerals from southern Africa; trade with nations of the Pachic Basin now surpass that with Europe.

The Soviets also have worldwide interests and commitments; thus, naval forces must be prepared to encounter high-technology, combined-arms threats in virtually every ocean of the world. Their methods for extending and protecting these interests include support and encouragement of limited warfare by Cuban, Libyan, Syrian, and North Korean proxies, as well as direct crisis response by their own forces. They also have enhanced their access to air and naval facilities in key strategic locations, including Ethiopia, South Yemen, Cuba, and Vietnam.

They steadily improve their ability to sever vital sea lines of communication, while improving their ability to counter U. S. crisis reaction moves. For example, Moscow recently established its first fully developed overseas base at Cam Ranh Bay, Vietnam. From this base Soviet forces can strike key United States and friendly forces and installations as far north as Hong Kong.

A tenet of their idealogy, the Soviets presume a future war with the West will be global in scope, violent, ε id decisive. The probable centerpiece of Soviet strategy in global war would be a combined-arms assault against Europe, where they would seek a quick and decisive victory. As prudent military pianners, the Soviets would, of course, prefer to concentrate on a single theater; a central premise of U.S. strategy is to deny t⁶em such an option.

Some Soviet overseas clients and surrogates outside the Warsaw Pact are located close to critical sea lines of communication and conceivably could join in an attack. Any Western strategy must, of necessity, hedge against such a third-country involvement.

While Soviet ground and air forces conduct a massive offensive, a critical Soviet Navy role in a future conflict would be to protect the Soviet homeland and their ballistic missile submarines, which provide the Soviets with their ultimate strategic reserve. Locating and destroying Western sea based nuclear assets, such as aircraft carriers and submarines, is the highest priority of the Soviet Navy. Interdicting sea lines of communication or supporting the Soviet Army, while important, will probably be secondary, at least at the war's start.

This view of the Soviet Navy's role in overall Soviet strategy suggests that the bulk of Soviet naval forces will initially deploy in areas near the Soviet Union, with only a small fraction deployed forward. Numerous advantages accrue from this strategy:

- short lines of logistics and communications,
- short deployment time,
- minimize build-up and surge indications,
- defensive posture is economical, and
- attack can occur with minimum warning.

One key goal of U.S. peacetime strategy is to further international stability through support of regional balances of power. The more stable the international environment, the lower the probability that the Soviets will risk war with the West.

The heart of U.S. Maritime Strategy is crisis response. If war with the Soviets occurs, it will probably result from a crisis that escalates out of control, U.S. ability to contain and control crises is an important factor in preventing global conflict.

Should war come, the Soviets would prefet to use their massive ground force advantage against Europe without having to concern themselves with a global conflict or with actions on their flanks. To countervail this strategy, the U.S. must ensure the Soviets will have to face the prospect of prolonged global conflict. This countervailing maritime strategy comprises three phases.

4.3.1 Deterrence or the Transition to War

The initial phase of the mantime strategy would be triggered by recognition that a specific international similar has the potential to grow to a global superpower confrontation. (A false alarm can be costly, leading to the "cry wolf" syndromet that is, the United Stars will be in a reaction mode and the Soviets will surely test our reaction and resolve.)

The goal of this phase is deterrence. Deterrence can be achieved by preparing for the transition to war specifically, to global war. Therefore, such preparations are an integral feature of this phase.

Keys to the success of both the initial phase and the strategy as a whole are speed and decisiveness in national decisionmaking. Timely, accurate intelligence coupled with a reliable, secure command, control, and communications system is essential. Procrastination here can be fatal; however, there is a heavy cost for reacting prematurely and rashly.

Even though a substantial fraction of the Elect is forward deployed in peacetime, prompt decisions are needed to permit rapid forward deployment of additional forces in crisis. This requirement underscores the importance of the Panama and Suez Canals in facilitating repositioning.

The need for forward movement is obvious. Aggressive forward movement of antisubmarine warfare forces, both submarine and maritime patrol aircraft, will force Soviet submarines to retreat into defensive bastions to protect their ballistic missile submarines. This move denies the Soviets the option of a massive, early attempt to interdict our sea lines of communication and counters such operations that the Soviets might undertake against them.

Moving one Marine amphibious brigade by air to rendezvous with its prepositioned equipment and reinforce Norway provides a convincing signal of Alliance solidarity. However, if this gambit fails, the Alliance may collapse.

Deployments to the Western Pacific directly enhance deterrence, including deterrence of an attack in Furope, by providing a clear indication that, should war come, the Soviets will not be able to ignore any region of the globe. Of course, dispersing our resources increases our risk in the central theater.

In addition to allowing rapid deployment, speed and decisiveness in national decision making are crucial to the strategy's overall execution. As more functions are transferred to the reserve forces, execution of the President's authority to call reservists becomes increasingly cracial to successful implementation of the strategy. The short that ing period allowed these personnel creates risk hor example, the maritime strategy includes a Memory addition of Agreement with the U.S. Coast Guard to contribute Maritime Defense Zones. Under this agreement, Coast Guard units, combined with both active and reserve naval forces, will defend harbors and shipping lanes about U.S. coasts in time of war.

An important aspect of the strategy's initial phase is sealift. In 1984, the Secretary of the Navy established sealift as the third primary mission of the Navy, along with sea control and power projection. This increased emphasis recognizes the importance of both becomme a submittary resupply. As a consequence of the present incentory of available ships and the limited ship-building capacity of American shipyards, the U.S. can neither tolerate attrition typical of World War II nor provide adequate sealift to transport requisite strategic raw materials. Therefore, early and effective uses of existing sealift are essential.

4.3.2 Seizing the Initiative

(

1

This is the second phase of the strategy. If deterrence fails and a crisis erupts into war, the Soviets will probably focus their offensive on Central Europe, while maintaining a defensive posture elsewhere. U.S. and Alliance maritime forces must counter the first salvo, wear down the enemy forces, protect sea lines of communication, continue reinforcement and resupply, and improve positioning.

It will be essential to conduct forward operations with attack submarines, as well as *to establish barriers at key world choke points* using maritime patrol aircraft, mines, attack submarines, or sonobuoys to prevent leakage of enemy forces into the open ocean where the Western Alliance's resupply can be threatened.

Logistics and sustainability are integral to the success of any strategy; they are especially vital in this one, which demands aggressive, sustained, forward operations.

4.3.3 Carrying the Fight to the Enemy

In the third and final phase of the maritime strategy, U.S. forces would endeavor to complete the destruction of all the Soviet fleets that was begun in the second phase. This action allows the U.S. to threaten the homeland bases and the support structure of the Soviet Navy in all theaters, with both air and amphibious power.

4.4 The Bottom Line

Success of the maritime strategy depends on early reaction to crisis and the political will to make difficult decisions early. As history has frequently demonstrated, survival depends upon both superior intelligence and leadership.

5.0 North Atlantic Treaty Organization

The evolving Communist threat in postwar Europe prompted the Western Allies to form the North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO). Signed into being on 24 August 1949, this treaty declared: An armed attack against one or more of them in Europe and North America shall be considered an attack against all.

Membership now includes the United States, Canada, Belgium, Denmark, France, the United Kingdom, Italy, Iceland, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Greece, Turkey, West Germany, and Spain.

The NATO structure comprises a Council and a Military Committee of three commands: Allied Command Europe, Allied Command Atlantic, and Allied Command Channel.

The four principal tasks of the Allied Command Atlantic are to

control the Atlantic Ocean sea lines of communication.

- protect reinforcement and resupply support.
- safeguard the seaborne trade of the Aleman and

• provide support for Alhed Command Europe and the Channel Command.

These tasks are embedded in three planters in

• The Norwegian Sea camputer lactor porting NATO forces on the Northern Flags of the ing enemy amphibious landings on NX (1) in the

• The battle for the Atlantic intelates is intended to the vital sea lines of communications for NATO in the Europe, as well as to protect the economic and the Atlance.

• The battle for the shallow seas seeks to reaction of trol of the Baltic Sea, the English Channel according to the Sea. Most trans-Atlantic shipping must altractive press through these areas.

Mining¹² can be employed to take advance to the restrictive geography that limits the free access. Warnes Pact forces to the open ocean. The Soviet Baltic Heet is and be controlled initially by a series of national transferreds, which are essentially defensive and protective. These minefields are supplemented by a NATO plan that acruss to close the Baltic exits to Warsaw Pact vessels and lay anti-invasion mines.

With current assets, NATO can close off only the Baltic and Black Seas, implement a very limited number of deepwater barriers, and conduct small-scale protective and defensive mining.

On the other hand, Soviet mining capability and the environmental conditions on both sides of the Atlantic make NATO's coastal waters and the use of the deepwater approaches to them very vulnerable. The Soviets recognize this situation, disdaining the German strategy of attacking Allied shipping in the open ocean. The Soviet stockpile of sea mines totals approximately 250,000, the majority of these mines are of recent vintage.

Soviet defensive minefields could be expected across choke points and sea access routes; offensive mining could be directed at the Baltic Sea, Allied submarine bases, approaches to the English Channel, the southern North Sea, ports in Greece and Turkey, and the Eastern seaboard of the United States, including the Straits of Florida.

Currently, the best mine countermeasure is to keep minelaying assets away from areas of significant interest

Of historical note, belligerents laid 235,000 mines during World War I and 635,000 mines in World War II.

5.1 The Atlantic Bridge

A common view in the northern hemisphere is that "the Atlantic bridge between North America and Europe is now, and ever shall be, the linchpin in the structure of political economic, and military ties which underpin the world order."¹³

Lessons from World War II and NATO compositions confirmed two truisms:

• It costs much more to win a war than et loss to provent it.

 The security of both North America and Europe and inseparable and can be depended only at the pend of both.

The Atlantic is a major sector of the activity. At any given memori, sugare a day of the 2000 vessels are steaming across the break and database 2000 are in harbor. In 1982, almost 700 nullications of darge were shipped through U.S., Guif, and Adabase ports, and almost 100 million tons through Canadian ports. Consider then, the results of the Soviet strategy that port denial (at either end of the sea route) is more cost effective than open-sea engagements. It is also worth noting that in the last few years, oil imports from OPEC to Western Europe have declined substantiality. North Sea production has reduced European dependence on Middle Fast oll.

Security of the Atlantic sea lines of communication under various conditions of peace crusts, or war is an integral part of the defense of Western Farope. It is essential to NATO's land defense: the better able NATO is to defend itself on land, the better able it must be to defend itself at sea, particularly in the northeast Atlantic. While NATO could win in the Atlantic and still lose a war, it could not lose there and win the sour. Deterrence is enhanced to the extent that the generally ac opted perception is that NATO can maintain its sea lines of communication to and from Europe under all conditions.

Three major changes have affected the maritime environment:

• the entergence of the Soviet Union as a maritime power.

the impact of mich in weapons, and

the growth of global interd per tence.

The cumulative effect of these factors will likely portend trouble for the tature sociality of NATO countries.

Soviet maritime: apability on possidisrupt NATO use of the set as a

• primary means for transporting resources and goods,

• medium to the doctorment and exploitation of resources.

• secure base to not to close decidente

• required light solution the tradection abroad of conventional militation of the solution

• bridge for the context operation of violation Western Europe in time of interactions.

Thus, the Second control of the second kerbin an economic and a provide half on the first of the portion of the Soviet and East First provide the state fleet is not overwherhing a base of the second second with the test of the second second with the test second second with the test second second

Nuclear weap to part control position as but party, have charged the current science of science as come weapons have reacted as a science of science as western Europe to Sever contact on the tables of prombers, availability, and de the new contact as the cativative as all ability and de the new contact of a science of the cativative an extremely mazardors optimal which places NATO strategy in a quanditis. Its earlier doctring on massive nuclear retaliation is non-sized placesible, but it disolacks the capability for a cline close place best for per Planners are trapped between encourses of much log off-use of nuclear weapon close of the state transition of the reinforcement and supply of the sized of the per-

There is increasing internal a null interdependence for the redistribution of resources is initial additional information must be moved by seal how nations possessials the toold, energy, and mineral resources becassary for conditioned development. Even the largest countries are net soft sufficient; they need trading partners thick to and the soft sufficient; they need trading partners thick to and the soft sufficient; they need trading partners thick to and the soft sufficient; they need the both the multical and the soft soft sufficient; the seas for the remainder of this contract to the soft soft the seas for the remainder of the soft soft soft soft soft the and unencumbered passage to additional soft soft soft soft addition of that grows.

At the same time. Third Worth Constitutions of become increasingly involved in both the use and constituent does the seas and will press the developed countries of a greater share of the economic benefits of the seas. As a charlotopy makes all surface ships more valuerable, the instat World countries will also possess a greater capability to effect there with the free passage of both military and connectual vessels. At the same time, the Soviet Union can be expected to expand its own uses of the seas to the liter postical, and economic purposes

5.2 NATO and the U.S. Maritime Strategy

In both World War Land World War Letter nation task of the U.S. Navy was to protect the movement of the men and material to Europe. In these walks the entropy of forman submarine and other maritime assets chased mator. Jamage in the early phases of the war. He were the fack of air superiority doomed German attorts at side and these sea lines of communication. Eventualisy the assets a sole and these sea lines of communication. Eventualisy the assets a sole and these sea lines of communication. Eventualisy the assets a sole and these sea lines of communication. Eventualisy the assets a sole are the Atlantic to await the production of sole scales compared submarines. The strategy of sails cost provide the only ped submarines. The strategy of sails cost provide the only of waiting for the formation attack user shapped contributions of waiting for the formation attack user shapped contributions be tormation was the most attack as a say of the angle be submarine threat.

Nuclear weapons and Nov100 are two leases, so why this cather strategy to not 16 on appropriate

As ballistic missile saturations becarile operational within the U.S. Fleet, the threat operative structure structure to dominate Soviet strategy. The last operation is condent in the priority assigned to the constant to some structure. SSBN force and the emphasis on constant to the sole operations to

• destroy enemy SSRN , and

protect Seviet SSBNs trans NAFASSED atmosf.

Thus, although the Octment operation of the earlies tigle mission in the lefter burgle of NP in strip to be offer. Securi force has three missions label the optimation to be in the security of the security

of communication is third in priority. The other aspect differentiating today s situation from that of World War II is U.S. membership in NATO. Commitment to defend Allied territory and immediate involvement in the war requires a greater role for U.S. naval forces in support of the European land battle at the begining of the war than occurred during World War II.

Control of northern Norway and the Norwegian Sea is essential for Soviet naval operations in the North Atlantic. The Soviet Northern Fleet is the only naval force with a realistic possibility of operating in the North Atlantic. Most of their striking power is in this fleet. As of 1983, 64^{σ_0} of the Soviet Typhoon, Delta I-III, and Yankee SSBNs, and 66^{σ_0} of the Soviet Navy's post-1967 combat ships operated out of the Kola Peninsula and White Sea ports. To reach the Atlantic, these forces must proceed around the northern cape of Norway, across 1000 miles of the Norwegian Sea, and through the Greenland-Iceland-Norway (GIN) gap, a difficult proposition at best. Conversely, Soviet control of this region would place extreme pressure on both the European northern flank and the North Atlantic sea lines of communication.¹⁴

As mentioned, the maritime strategy embraces five principles:

• nonnuclear.

(

• protracted coalition war with sequential and rollback operations.

• offensive pressure to protect sea lines of communication,

• war termination leverage, and

• control of the seas to apply effects of a massive Western mobilization (U.S. \$1 trillion per year, plus non-European Allies \$500 million per year).

The maritime strategy adds to Soviet uncertainty¹⁵ by declaring that regardless of how well the Soviets are doing on the Central Front, the U.S. naval policy is to

- apply pressure globally,
- possibly change the nuclear balance.
- prolong the war,
- apply to Europe the effects of U.S. mobilization,

• assist in the mobilization of Japan and other non-European Allies,

• possibly transport high technology military items to the Peoples Republic of China,

• apply pressure on the Soviet flanks,

· attack Soviet bases,

4

destroy the Soviet Navy, and

• prevent the Soviet use of any ocean for any reason. These capabilities point to a conflict of different dimensions from a World War II-type blitzking on the Central front. In deterrent terms, this increases Soviet uncertainty and complicates Soviet planning. To prevail against the maritime strategy, the Soviets must achieve two very difficult tasks: break the center, and some the tlanks to choke down the massive reinforcement- which will be coming across the sea lines of communication.

5.3 The Northern Flank

The Reagan administration is committed to a major shift in naval strategy, from defensive deployment of 400 ships to defend the sea lines of communication to forward defense with 600 plus ships to destroy Soviet vessels near their home ports. Virtually all analysts agree that the best strategy would be to gain control of the Norwegian Sea.

Perception of the utility of the U.S. maritime strategy, relative to the protection of Northern Europe, depends upon geography, economic development, and the political actions of the U.S. the Soviets, and the Europeans. The issue is not at all clear to the Europeans, whether this new strategy represents a U.S. move toward a clear commitment to European defense or a is destabilizing and dangerous step that will increase the risk of war.¹⁶

Nordic Europe faces a fundamental dilemma: how to manage the prospect of aggressive Soviet actionaccommodation or a strong defense within NATO. Resolution of this dilemma is linked to the perception of the Forward Maritime Strategy. The strategy is ambiguous and evolutionary. It: basis is perceived to be one or more of the following doctrines:

- funding,
- deployment.
- horizontal escalation,
- conventional war, or
- conventional strategic defense.

The last concept is most troublesome for Northern Europe. Antisubmarine warfare is a prominent feature of this strategy, possibly posing a threat to Soviet nuclear missile submarines and thus destabilizing the political situation. A major trend in arms control in recent years has been the importance of strengthening what has become known as "crisis stability": the belief that either side, faced with the vulnerat "ty of a large percentage of its strategic forces, will be tempted to launch a preemptive nuclear strike in a crisis.

Recognition of Norway and the Norwegian Sea as the key to the defense of Europe is now commonly accepted as conventional wisdom. How this defense would be effected, however, is still a subject for debate. NATO's successful defense of Norway hinges upon control of the sea and air space north of the GIN line to enable the rapid reinforcement of Norway.¹⁷

Reality must eventually be faced. North of the GIN line, the Soviets presently predominate on, above, and beneath the sea. On land, Soviet forces significantly outweigh the Norwegian forces tasked with the defense of the northern region. With the balance of power on the Northern Flank in favor of the Soviets, the outcome of a Soviet thrust into Norway, could easily be decided before NATO could respond.

To overcome this deticiency, NATO's peacetime presence in the area needs to be increased, and the reaction time required to reinforce the region needs to be reduced.

The North Cape region of Norway is obviously of some importance, since the Soviets must pass by it on the way

to the Atlantic. Because of sea ice, there is a 130-milewide, ice-free passage to Murmansk in the winter. In summer, the width of this passage increases to 300 miles.

Soviet control of northern Norway would virtually assure their dominance in the Norwegian Sea down to the GIN line and would push back the frontier of NATO sealaunched missiles into the North Atlantic. This move would provide for an in-depth Soviet projection of surface and subsurface interdiction of the NATO Atlantic lifeline and would place the resupply of Europe in extreme peril.

The Soviets have two major fleets in Nordic Europe, the Northern Fleet and the Baltic Fleet. The former possesses the most powerful strike capability of the four Soviet fleets, whereas the latter is largest in total number of vessels and manpower. The principal strength of the Baltic Fleet is found in mine warfare and ground support operations (amphibious).

NATO's naval presence is generally limited to deployments of the 7-9 vessel Standing Naval Force Atlantic (StaNavForLant), operating under Allied Command Atlantic. Because of its responsibilities in all of Allied Command Atlantic's area of operation, this force is not focused on the Norwegian Sea.

The most serious threat to reinforcing the Northern Flank is Soviet aviation. The key to battle for the Norwegian Sea would be the effectiveness of Soviet bomber coordination, on one hand, and of Allied antimissile systems and fighter aircraft, on the other.

Although the North Atlantic seas are extremely rough, the Norwegian Sea is not as treacherous. From the standpoint of men and equipment, the environment is more tolerable to operate in the Norwegian Sea than to fight through the North Atlantic to recapture it.

A key element in determining NATO's capability to repel a Soviet assault in Norway is the amount of warning time that strategic intelligence would be able to provide to NATO's governmental decision makers. Regardless of the amount of warning time, the contribution of naval forces to Norway's defense will be critical.¹⁸

6.0 Soviet Strategy

So far, we have examined U.S. and NATO perspectives of the global situation; the Soviet viewpoint is somewhat different and thereby lies the danger of misinterpretation of intent.

6.1 Global Strategy and the TVD

Although the West (that is, NATO) considers that a large-scale war would be a world war, only Europe has been divided into theaters. This follows because NATO was conceived in 1949 to defend only Western Europe, North America, and the North Atlantic. Also, following the British and French debacle in the Suez War, British withdrawal from Aden and French withdrawal from Indochina, all in the 1950s, European power "East of Suez" declined to almost nothing. In marked contrast to the NATO perspective, the interests of the Soviet Union are truly global and farreaching.¹⁹ In speaking of the Soviet Union and its theatres, Western concepts do not apply.

Soviet specialists believe that war may break out anywhere and quickly spread either to other parts of the planet or to the whole planet. For many reasons, the Soviets do not proclaim their strategy to the world; however, a glimpse of Soviet strategy is revealed in their partitioning of the world into 16 TVDs (military-geographical zones). (TVD is the Soviet acronym for theater of actions on a strategic scale.) Figure 6.1 shows these LVDs to be divided into several categories: TVD 1, the Central Strategic Region (CSR) surrounding Moscow; Continental LVDs; Oceanic TVDs; and Maritime TVDs.

The term, TVD, evolved through several changes of meaning, but was eventually defined as "part of a continental territory with its coastal waters, mland seas, and air space (Continental TVD), or the water areas of one ocean, including islands, adjoining seas, and coastal land belts (Oceanie TVD) within the boundaries of which strategic groupings of armed forces may be deployed and military operations carried out." Continental TVDs include land and coastal waters, and oceanic TVDs include water areas and coasts; thus, coastlines and continental shelves belong to both continental and oceanic TVDs. The third TVD category of significance is the Maritime TVD, which includes only two zones—the Caribbean Sea and the Mediterranean Sea, zones 15 and 16, respectively.

Numbering and boundaries of the TVDs reveals something of the Soviet world perspective. The boundaries are not made public because they reflect the global interests of the Soviet Union. Numbering implies a ranking of priority. As might be expected, the Soviet capitol and industrial complex is Zone 1 (Central Strategic Region), and its chief protagonists, North America and Europe, are Zones 2 and 3, respectively. Thus, North America and not Europe represents the principal threat to the U.S.S.R. Soviet East Asia is Zone 4, Southwest Asia is Zone 5, and Southeast Asia is Zone 6.

After NATO, zones 4, 5, and 6 constitute a major concern for the Soviets. Of the Oceanic TVDs, top ranked is the Arctic Ocean (Zone 11), followed by the Pacific Ocean, (Zone 12), the Atlantic Ocean, (Zone 13) and, finally, the Indian Ocean, (Zone 14). If zone numbering is indeed a ranking of region, then the ranking of the Caribbean Sea ahead of the Mediterranean is interesting!

The boundaries of these TVDs is also revealing. For example, the Western TVD (Europe), Figure 6.2, extends from Novaya Zemlya in the Arctic Ocean southward through Moroeco. This extent is interesting because, at its northern and southern extremities, it includes a Soviet egress passage, Proliv Karskiye Vorota, and a major Allied sea line of communication, the Strait of Gibraltar, respectively. To the southeast, the Western TVD, Zone 3, also includes the Furkish Straits (Dardanelles and Bosporus), a key passage in the Soviet Southern Sca Route.





Figure 6.2. The Western TVD (after Suvorov¹⁹).

These clues are of strategic importance. The Soviet military consider the most important principle of war to be the concentration of forces and effort in the decisive place at the decisive moment. This principle also requires the concentration of the most capable generals and marshals at the place where the outcome of the war is to be decided.

In the opinion of Soviet leadership, a new war will move much more rapidly than previous ones, loss of communications at all levels will be common, and crises will arise constantly. The importance of flexibility in strategic command and control will grow, as will the necessity of being able to unite at a decisive moment various types of forces under a command with full powers and the knowledge of local circumstances.

A new term, "strategic offensive," has appeared recently in Soviet military jargon. The Soviet General Staff is preparing operations that will surpass in scale, intensity, and speed anything known in the past, including the massive World War II operations at Stalingrad and Kursk.

Of the five Soviet armed services, Strategic Rocket Forces, PVO (Air Defense), Ground Forces, Air Forces, and Navy, the Strategic Rocket Forces is the most important because it is designed for battle with the main enemy, North America (Zone 2). They must be permanently prepared to carry out the foremost strategic operations namely, the use of strategic nuclear forces to destroy the enemy's state and military organs, military-industrial complexes, and nuclear forces.

6.2 Strategic Surprise

(

Sectores.

Strategic surprise²⁰ is defined as concealment of the intention to launch an offensive and for its timing. It is achieved through "large-scale deceptive actions, regroupings, and concentrations, concealing troops and installations, and misinforming the enemy."

Although weaker than NATO in population, wealth, industrial power and technological progress, the Soviets do not conclude that a war against NATO cannot be won. Although lacking in military potential, their superiority in currently deployed military strength points to a conclusion that such a war must be won very quickly, in its initial period. This position is defined to be "the period of time which elapses between the start of hostilities and the completion by the combatants of their mobilization, concentration, and deployment."

In essence, the Soviets must seize a vital area of NATO (for example, West Germany) and destroy key combat groupings before NATO can either complete its defensive preparations or agree on the use of nuclear weapons.

The Soviets identify five elements for a quick victory:

- surprise,
- a heavy blow,
- a rapid advance,

simultaneous attacks throughout the enemy's depth,air superiority.

Of these five elements, surprise is the most important to naval planners. Surprise can confer five advantages to the Soviets:

• Surprise preempts NATO reinforcement plans and renders them largely unworkable.

• Surprise makes it possible to achieve at least a limited strategic objective with much smaller forces than would be required against a prepared enemy.

• Surprise makes it easier to further disrupt by interposing forces between the enemy forces and their line of retreat or source of supply, thus prolonging the effects of surprise

• Surprise lesseng the logistic builden and the number t casualnes in ottensive operations.

 Surprise avoids inadvertent disclosure of attack plans involution Warsaw Pact.

Here is ally, the Soviets have been very successful in implementing such measures. World War H campaigns against both the Germans and the Japanese, and the Cold War is a finite an anste Czychoslovakia. Hunnary, Non-architector and Person Propositive them all lity to a first subtractive superior. For chore this indicate pattern such the fisht.

6.3 The Southern Sea Route

Intertwined with Soviet military strategy is a strategy of economic growth and development, which must also be addressed. The Soviet Union's economy features two fundamental conditions:

• It is insulated from the direct effects of interpational supply and demand.

• It tends to be self-sufficient.

Since the year 1700, the Soviets have sought a "twarm water" port on the Indian Ocean. This desire has not wated with time. Established briefly during World War II, a sea-land route through Iran and the Indian Ocean (Eq. 6.3) demonstrated the tremendous utility of Soviet access to ice-free ports. (Churchill regarded transportation of Western arms to the Soviet Union by this route as even more important than Western access to framen oil of

This benefit was clearly understood by the Societs: the focus of their strategy in Southwest Asia is not on, but sea lines of communication. Their goals appear to be expansion of growth in efficiency and protection of the Soviet Union's geostrategic lines of communication that run through, or near, Southwest Asia.

Utilization and dependency upon the "Southern Sea Route" (Figs. 6.3 and 6.4) has increased since the begin ning of this century to the point where Soviet national policy and planning depend upon this route through the Indian Ocean. This dependency has been fueled by the steady economic, political, and military developments in the Soviet Far East and the need to aid client states bordering the Indian Ocean.

Contrary to the United States concept of intercontinental strategy, the Soviets develop strategy on an *intracontinental* basis. Their political and military strategy is linked inextricably to the map (Fig. 6.1), principally, the map of Furasia and the southern half of the eastern hemisphere.

The present transportation system of the Soviet Union is underdeveloped, deficient, and costly. In comparison with the West, all forms of land transportation in the U.S.S.R. bear heavy loads.

During the past two decades, sea transportation has increased in importance for both the economic and the military aspects of Sovier lite. In 1980, railways carried 85% of Soviet freight, by 1980, this figure decined to 57%.

The U.S.S.R. has five major industrial regions, the Northwest, the Ukraine, the Urals, the Kuznetsk Basin, and the Komsomolish region. The Utals and eastern regions, represent a store as the cost the Solid Action and software 1928 to 1960, the preside on memory alternative 32 - . while industrial products detailed by the results of the These changes have generated massive last mean traff. They so The most critical problem is the trate pertones of a strest connect the Encopean U.S.S.R. to the Asia to datis the Komsomolsk and kliabarovsk regions in the Last ast There are no all souther builts into entry of coads between these the spectral data is specific to show Allin 17.11 fution metrics for all c = 1 , a buscle fit c = 1. Occar: Also that f = 0 for c = 1 for c = 1. The Galeta an by



Figure 6.3. Southern Sea Route latter Westwood a

sea, although the sea route via the Suez Canal is over twice as long as the overland rail route.

Internal air and land transportation links have proved inadequate to transfer the volume of freight and the people needed for the continued defense and development of the Soviet Far East; consequently, the Indian Ocean route is vital to Soviet interests. Control of the Iran-Afghanistan Pakistan (IAP) region offers protection for a large portion of the Southern Sea Route with the added potential benefit of denying this route to Soviet adversaries.

Ħ

ľ

Air distances from southern U.S.S.R. to the Arabian Sea and the Persian Gulf are 800 miles and 600 miles, respectively. Airfields in Afghanistan are closer still; thus, establishing Soviet air superiority over this region presents no major problem.



Figure 6.4. Soviet maritime strategy and transportation (after Westwood²²).

Shifting a major portion of Soviet east-west freight traffic through the IAP region reduces the strategic communications problem. This solution is similar to the construction of the Panama Canal as a means for resolving early U.S. transportation problems between two oceans.

Expanding lines of communication characterize the 400-year history of Soviet expansion and territorial acquisitions in Central and Southwest Asia. So far, there is no evidence to suggest a policy change.

Soviet passages through the Suez Canal demonstrate their need for the Southern Sea Route. Between 1958 and 1966, Soviet shipping in the canal increased by more than 250%, and tonnage increased by more than 350%. Between 1966 and 1979, Soviet ranking in canal tonnage rose from seventh to fourth place. Routinely, there are 100-200 Soviet merchant ships of various types in the Indian Ocean. As much as one-third to one-half the merchant fleet is committed to the Southern Sea Route.

Past Soviet success in Southwest Asia resulted from lack of effective resistance and interior lines of communication. These advantages will most likely remain until the interior lines become sea lines of communication (that is, exterior lines).

On 29 September 1984, the final section of the Baikal-Amur-Mainline (BAM) railway was laid in place.²² This recently completed 2000-mile-long rail system links central Siberia with important commercial and military ports on the Soviet Pacific coast: Sovetskaya Gavan, Vladivostok, Nadhodka, and Vostochnyy (see Fig. 6.4). Servicing the extractive and productive industries of southeastern Siberia. it transports a rapidly growing volume of products to the eastern ports on the Sea of Japan and thence to European U.S.S.R. ports via the Southern Sea Route.

BAM is a significant accomplishment and is indicative of Soviet determination to economically develop the region BAM took 10 years to complete. It crosses five principal terrain elevations and 17 rivers. There are four tunnels, including the first tunnel ever completed in permafrost. Another tunnel is over 9 miles long. There are 58 bridges along the railway.

The probable immense cost (the Soviet investment is officially forbidden for open publication) of this railway plus the cost of maintaining Soviet naval bases at Cam Ranh Bay, Vietnam, and Socotra Island, Yemen, underscore Soviet intentions to protect and increase use of the Southern Sea Route.

6.4 Naval Policy

Geography is the primary influence upon Soviet strategy; the Soviet Navy is to defend certain geography and economic development of that geography. The recent replacement of Admiral Gorshkov with Admiral Chernavin demonstrates clearly the principal role of the Soviet Navy defense.

6.4.1 Naval Missions

The Soviet Navy is assigned three missions:

• Protect the Soviet SSBN force, particularly the reserve force.

• Defend the homeland against attack from submarine and aircraft carrier nuclear assets

• Inderdict Allied sea lines of communication.

Note that the first two missions are valid during peace, crisis, and war, whereas the third mission is not valid during peace and may not be valid in crisis situations.

6.4.2 Naval Policy Trends

The recent retirement of Soviet Commander in Chief Gorshkov and his replacement by Admiral Chernavin^{23,24} signals a change to earlier trends in Soviet Navy growth and development. Gorshkov transformed the Soviet Navy from a post World War II coastal defense fleet to a powerful global torce; however, his advocacy of an independent Soviet Navy clashed with Gorbachev's desire for a unified Strategic Nuclear Force (SNF). With Gorshkov's retirement, the creation of a new SNF seems imminent, with the heads of the Strategic Rocket Force (SRF), the Navy, and the Air Force passing control of the SSBN force, long-range aircraft and ICBMs to an organization headed by three operational commanders-in-chief, who report to a single nuclear chief. Thus, Soviet SSBN's are no longer under Navy control: constituting an integral part of the nuclear arsenal. Soviet ballistic missile strategy is now part of a unified war plan.

The new Commander-in-Chief of the Soviet Navy, Admiral Chernavin, insists upon total integration of the Navy into the combined arms art of war. He believes naval forces can operate effectively as an integral part of a landbased command, without losing the operational and tactical autonomy to fully exploit the unique performance of naval weapon systems.

While under his command the Northern Fleet, which took a central role in the ZAPAD-81 Exercise (September 1981), performed the largest naval landing in Soviet history. The Soviets consider ZAPAD-81 to be the prototype of the future war, and Admiral Chernavin understands that only a complete integration of the fleet into the emerging strategy will ensure the fleet's development.

At the onset of World War II, the Germans demonstrated the advantages of prepositionine 4 limited naval assets for maximum effectiveness; undoubtedly, the Soviets will attempt (simila trategy, y counter trategy entails extensive surveillance and intelligence gathering.

A graphic due to Soviet naval strategy lies in their exercise locations — As would be expected, frequent naval exercises occur in the Greenland and Barents Seas, the Baltic Sea, the Black Sea, the Sea of Japan, and the Sea of Okhotsk. Less frequent exercises are conducted in the Norwegian Sea and the Greenland decland United Kingdom (GIUK) gap, and the in Fastern Mediterranean Sea. On occasion, express have been hold by the Northwest Pacific, the South China Sea, the scottherweip of India, the west coast of Africa near Angola, the Northwest Atlantic, and the Caribbean Sca. Note that three of these distant, expensive exercises relate to Soviet sea lines of communication, but all six exercises relate to Alliance sea lines of communication.

6.5 Implications of Soviet Strategy

Although the foregoing evidence is meager, some conclusions are apparent:

• Economic, political, and military development of the Soviet Far East is a key element of Soviet strategy.

• Soviet political, economic, and military pressure on Western Europe will continue.

• North America, not Europe, is the principal Soviet adversary.

• A war of attrition does not favor the Soviets.

The Soviets understand clearly the crucial value of sea lines of communication in both Soviet and Alliance strategy. Protection or denial of these sea lines of communication impacts any global strategy, particularly if they are essential to prepositioning of forces.

7.0 Selection Process for Strategic Passages

As mentioned earlier, rank ordering of the world's strategic passages entails three tasks:

• Ascertain those attributes upon which one can measure the utility of a passage.

• Ascribe a value system to the attributes.

• Apply the evaluated attributes as a template to retrieve a set of strategic passages from a larger set.

All the previous sections provided a prologue for these tasks; at this juncture, we have established, through examination of contemporary views of global and naval strategy, a reasonable understanding of those attributes that contribute to the perceived utility of a maritime passage. The task before us is to link key attributes to an exhaustive set of candidate passages in a form that will expedite rank ordering of their importance.

7.1 Candidate passages

Although stability is a clearly stated goal of U.S. strategy, inexorable and unforeseen political and economic events tend to confound the issues, creating a "fog of purpose." The U.S. seeks stability in a scene of inevitable change. As a consequence, the relative importance of geographical areas, such as strategic passages, may change with events. In this context, it is better to start are wrather than to cling to earlier perceptions of geographical significance.

A reasonable licensing is accoration of survey of all maritime passages that could be considered important. Reference to a good world mup through an adequate source. Table 7.1 lists 77 passages obtained from the Defense Mapping Agency Ministing World, Scries 1142, Inland, waterways, such as the Kennishakes, are not included. This list dennises each rescars the geographic theater or TVD is paintened.

Name	Theater	Name	Theater
Bab el Mandeb	Arabian 5	Preparis North Channel	Indian b
Strait of Hormuz	Arabian 5	Preparis South Channel	Instant 6
Denmark Strait	Arctic 11	Strait Sumba	Indian b
Ballantyne Strait	Arctic 2	Strait Sunga	i1 6
Barrow Strait	Arctic 2	Strait of Malacca	Indian 6
Byam Martin Channel	Arctic 2	Ten Degree Channel	Indian 6
Davis Strait	Arctic 2	Mozambique Channel	Indian 7
Dease Strait	Arctic 2	Strait of Bonifacio	Mediterrariean 11
Dolphin and Union Strait	Arctic 2	Strait of Messina	Mediterranéan 1
Kennedy Channel	Arctic 2	Strait of Otranto	Mediterranean 16
M'Clure Strait	Arctic 2	Dardanelles	Mediterranean 3
Maclean Strait	Arctic 2	Strait of Gibraltar	Mediterranean 3
Narisen Sound	Arctic 2	Suez Canal	Mediterracean 5
Peary Channel	Arctic 2	Cabot Strait	N Atlantic 2
Penny Strait	Arctic 2	Hudson Strait	N. Atlantic 2
Prince of Wales Strait	Arctic 2	Strait of Belle Isle	N. Atlantic 2
Robeson Channel	Arctic 2	English Channel	N. Atlantic 3
Smith Sound	Arctic 2	Formosa Strait	N. Pacific 12
Sverdrup Channel	Arctic 2	Dixon Entrance	N. Pacific 2
Proliv Karskiye Vorota	Arctic 3	Shelikof Strait	N. Pacific 2
Bering Strait	Arctic 4	Strait of Juan de Fuca	N. Pacific 2
Proliv Dimitriya Lapteva	Arctic 4	Unimak Pass	N. Pacific 2
Proliv Longa	Arctic 4	Korea Strait	N. Pacific 4
Proliv Vil'kitskogo	Arctic 4	La Perouse Strait	N. Pacific 4
Gulf of Finland	Baltic 3	Proliv Bussol'	N. Pacific 4
Kattegat	Baltic 3	Tartar Strait	N. Pacific 4
Skagerrak	Baltic 3	Tsugaru Strait	N. Pacific 4
Sodra Kvarken	Baltic 3	Babuyan Channel	N. Pacific 6
Guadeloupe Passage	Caribbean 15	Balabac Strait	N Pacific 6
Mona Passage	Caribbean 15	Balintang Channel	N. Pacific 6
Northeast Providence Channel	Caribbean 15	Bashi Channel	N Pacific 6
Panama Canal	Caribbean 15	Makassar Strait	N. Pacific 6
St. Lucia Channel	Caribbean 15	Mindoro Strait	N Pacific 6
St. Vincent Passage	Caribbean 15	Torres Strait	N Pacity 6
Straits of Florida	Caribbean 15	Wetar Passage	N. Pacific 6
Windward Passage	Caribbean 15	Strait of Magellan	S. Atlantic 13
Yucatan Channel	Caribbean 15	Bass Strait	S. Pacific 9
Palk Strait	Indian 5	Cook Strait	S Pacific 9
Great Channel	Indran 6		

7.2 Passage attributes

R

, L

2

After assembling the candidate passage list, the next step in the selection process involves determining what attributes describe the utility of a maritime passage. Using the preceding sections for guidance, eight attributes deemed very relevant to passage utility are described in the following subsections.

7.2.1 Geographic region and Soviet TVD

Region descriptions are North Atlantic, South Atlantic, North Pacific, South Pacific, Arctic, Caribbean, Mediterranean, Indian, Arabian, and Baltic regions. Soviet TVD regions are listed.

(1) Central Strategic Region (CSR)

Continental TVDs

- (2) North America
- (3) Western TVD (including Morocco)
- (4) Far Eastern TVD
- (5) Southern TVD
- (6) South-Eastern TVD
- (7) Africa
- (8) South America
- (9) Australia
- (10) Antarctica

Oceanic IVDs

(11) Arctic Ocean(12) Pacific Ocean(13) A(lartic Ocean(14) Indian Ocean

Maritime TVDs

(15) Caribbean Sea(16) Mediterranean Sea

In cases where the passage lies on the boundary of two IVDs, the lower numbered TVD is chosen.

7.2.2 Coast

Relative to U.S. interests, the coast of a passage can be hostile, friendly, neutral, or Third World. Where the shores differ, the worst case is chosen. In essence, this attribute measures risk.

7.2.3 Traffic

Primary shipping traffic through the passage is labeled: commercial, military, SOVLOCU, SOVLOCR, or none. SOVLOCU designates a Soviet Line Of Communication with unrestricted (free world) commercial use; SOVLOC R designates a Soviet Line Of Communication with restricted commercial use.

7.2.4 Egress

Egress from a major naval base to the open sea is designated U.S., Soviet, or No.

7.2.5 Peace Use

Primary military use by the Free World Alliance during peace is Canal, Sea Line of Communication, Intelligence, Barrier, or None. Canal emphasizes the manmade aspect of the passage, thus its intrinsic value. This operating mode corresponds to the deterrence phase of the U.S. maritime strategy.

7.2.6 Crisis use

This maritime traffic mode corresponds to the transition to war portion of the maritime strategy. Primary additary use by the Alliance during a crisis uses the same factors as peace use.

7.2.7 War use

the traffic mode corresponds to phase two, seizing the institutive, of the maritime strategy. Phase three, carrying the tight to the enemy, is not considered here, since it presumes all maritime passages are closed to hostile forces and all military action is directed against the Soviet homeland. Primary military use by the Alliance during war uses the same factors as peace use.

7.2.8 Operation

Primary Alliance wartime operations, relative to the passage, are either offensive or defensive.

7.3 Matrix of maritime passages

Upon describing each of the 77 maritime passages with the foregoing eight attributes, the resulting relationships are arranged in matrix form within a relational data base (INGRES), Table 7.2. The resultant matrix is 77 rows (passages) and 8 columns (attributes) that feature simple, descriptive entries. A relational data base is a practical analysis technique that enables the use of simple queries to retrieve selected qualitative or quantitative data from the data base. For example, all passages located within TVD 3 and providing egress from a Soviet naval base can be selected and retrieved.

7.4 Passage selection

Referring to preceding sections to formulate a selection template, several major strategic conclusions emerge:

• Defense and resupply of NATO is a major United States commitment.

• The economic vitality of the Alliance must be maintained.

• The Soviet Union crucially needs economic growth, particularly in the Far East.

• Since military power is founded upon economic vitality and endurance, the most important attribute of a maritime passage is the nature and volume of what passes through it during normal conditions, that is, the matrix attributes, Traffic and Peace_use.

• The immense cost of man-made passages (canals) warrants them special attention. No arguments have been discovered that lessen their initial value to world-wide commerce.

• Aside from defense and control of the canals, maritime passages affecting the major ports and flanks of Europe, and the Soviet Southern Sea Route are crucial to conomic survival and growth. That some maritime passages are important to both the Alliance and the Soviets (SOV-LOCU) gives them special significance.

Using these criteria, passages were retrieved from the data base, where

Traffic = SOVLOCU, or $Peace_use = Canal$, or $Peace_use = SLOC$.

The resulting 12 *strategic passages* are listed alphabetically in Table 7.3. Figure 7.1 locates these cruciel waterways on the world map of Soviet TVD's.

An estimate of potential risk can be obtained by examinating the Coast attribute for these 12 passages. Lable 2 shows that

• two of the passages have at least one *hostile* coast.

• four of the passages have at least one *Third World* coast.

• two of the passages have at least one neutral coast.

• four of the passages have *friendly* coasts.

Further, two passages provide *egress* from Soviet naval bases and one passage provides *egress* from U.S. naval bases.



DECEMPENTIONS SECURING DECESSION PRODUCED VANDAURED, SECURING DEEDER EINDER DEEDER TRADUCT PRODUCT PRODUCT DECE

12 (3)

ģ

Ø

ļ

.

ŝ

X

•••

Figure 7-1. Selected strategic passages.

			no passages		1110-114.			
Name	Theater	Coast	Traffic	Egress	Peace Use	Crisis Use	War Use	Operation
Bab el Mandeb	Arabian 5	Third World	SOVLOCU	No	SLOC	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Strait of Hormuz	Arabian 5	Hostile	Commercial	0N N	None	SLOC	SLOC	De ^t ense
Denmark Strait	Arc 11 11	Friendly	Commercial	0N	Intelligence	Intetligence	Barrier	Deferse
Ballantyne Strait	$A_{1} \subset 2$	Friendly	None	٥٧	None	Intelligence	Barr er	Detersio
Barrow Strait	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	No	Intelligence	Barrier	Barrier	Detense
Byam Martin Channe	Archic 2	Friendly	None	No	None	None	Intelligence	Defense
Davis Strait	Arctic 2	Friendly	Military	0 N	Intelligence	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Dease Strait	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	No	None	Intelligence	Barrier	Detense
Dolphin and Union Strath	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	0N N	Intelligence	Barrier	Barrier	Deter se
Kennedy Channel	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	No	Intelligence	Barrier	Barner	Defcinse
M Clure Strait	Ar-tic 2	Friendly	None	٥N	Intelligence	Barrier	Barrier	Defense
Maclean Strait	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	٥N	None	Intelligence	Barner	Detense
Nansen Sound	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	°z	None	Intelligence	Barrier	Defense
Peary Channel	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	NG	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barrier	Defense
Penny Strait	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	о N	None	None	Intelligence	Defense
Prince of Wales Stra.t	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	No	None	None	Intelligence	Defense
Robeson Channel	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	No	Intelligence	Barrier	Barrier	Defense
Smith Sound	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	٥N	Intelligence	Barrier	Barrier	Defense
Sverdrup Channel	Arctic 2	Friendly	None	No	None	Intelligence	Barner	Defense
Protiv Karskiye Vorota	Arctic 3	Hostile	SOVLOCR	°Z	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barner	Offense
Bering Strait	Arctic 4	Hostile	Commercial	No	Intelligence	Barner	Barrier	Offense
Proliv Dimitriya Lapteva	Arctic 4	Hostile	SOVLOCR	No	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barner	Offense
Proliv Longa	Arctic 4	Hostile	SOVLOCR	No	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barrier	Offense
Proliv Vil'kitskogo	Archie 4	Hostile	SOVLOCR	No	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barner	Offense
Gurt of Finland	Baitic 3	Hostile	Commercial	No	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barner	Ottense
Kattegat	Bultic 3	Neutral	Commercial	Soviet	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barrier	Offense
Skagerrak	Baitic 3	Friendly	Commercial	Soviet	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barrier	Offense
Sodra Kvarken	Baltic 3	Neutral	Commercial	No	None	Intelligence	Вагчег	Defense
Guadeloupe Passage	Caribbean 15	Friendly	None	No No	None	Intelligence	Barr er	Defense
Mona Passage	Caribbean 15	Neutral	Commercial	٥N	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Northeast Providence Channel	Caribbean 15	Friendly	Commercial	No	None	SLOC	2003	Defense
Panama Canal	Caribbean 15	Friendly	Commercial	No	Canal	Canal	Canal	Defense
St Lucia Channel	Caribbean 15	Friendly	Commercial	No	None	SLOC	SLCC	Defense
St Vincent Passage	Cambbean 15	Friendly	Commercial	NC	None	20.00	SLCC	T)+11-1 5
Straits of Florida	Canbbean 15	Hestile	Commercial	5 S	2015	JOTS	St 00	D. 1. 5.
Heritaard Passage		+ 15°1	Commercial	U S	الم الم الم	5, 30		
rightancel	" artibedr 15	Histle	Commercial	02	5.00	20015		
	ti tati fi	Th. Ed. (2004d	Communcial					

Table 7.2 Maritime passages attribute matrix.

[----

Table 7.2 Continued.

	1918911	0951		caifin	Peace Use	Crisis Use	War Use	Operation
Great Channel	Indian 6	Third World	SOVLOCU	°N N	SLOC	Barrier	Barrier	Defense
Proparts North Channel	Indian 6	Third World	None	No	None	Intelligence	Intelligence	Detense
Preparis South Channel	Indian 6	Third World	Commercial	No	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Dina t Sumba	Indian 6	Third World	None	No	None	None	Intelligence	Defense
Smit Sunda	indian 6	Third World	Commercial	°N	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Stratiof Malacca	Indian 6	Third World	SOVLOCU	°N	SLOC	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Tegree Channel	Indian 6	Third World	None	No	None	Intelligence	Intelligence	Defense
Militambique Channel	Indian 7	Third World	Commercial	No	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Strat of Burliaum	Mediterranean 16	Friendly	None	No No	None	Intelligence	Barrier	Defense
ótra tiút Messika	Mediterranean 16	Friendly	Commercial	U.S.	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Strait of Otranto	Mediterranean 16	Hostile	Commercial	No	None	Intelligence	Barrier	Defense
Cardanelles	Mediterranean 3	Friendly	SOVLOCU	Soviet	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barrier	Offense
Smart of Gibraltar	Mediterranean 3	Neutral	Commercial	No No	SLOC	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Allez Canal	Mediterranean 5	Third World	SOVLOCU	No	Canal	Canal	Canal	Defense
Cabor Strait	N Atlantic 2	Friendly	Commercial	٥N	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Hudson Strait	N. Atlantic 2	Friendly	Commercial	No	None	Intelligence	Barrier	Defense
Strait of Belle Isle	N Atlantic 2	Friendly	Commercial	0 <mark>N</mark> 0	None	SLOC	SI OC	Defense
Eriglish Channel	N Atlantic 3	Friendly	Commercial	No	SLOC	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
Formosa Strait	N Pacific 12	Neutral	SOVLOCU	No	None	Intelligence	Barrier	Defense
Crixion Entrance	N Pacific 2	Friendly	None	No	None	Intelligence	Barrier	Defense
©reakot Straut	N Pacific 2	Friendly	None	No	None	None	Intelligence	Defense
instation and the Fuld	N Pacific 2	Frendly	Commercial	υS	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
ALE	N. Pacific 2	Friendly	Commercial	ୁ ଅ	None	SLOC	SLOC	Defense
	N Pacific 4	Friendly	SOVLOCU	Soviet	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barrier	Offense
· Prouse Strat	N Pacific 4	Hostile	Commercial	Sound	Intelligence	Intelligence	Barner	Otterse
ំ ំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំំ	N Pacific 4	Hostrie	None	Sovet	Intelligence	intelligence	Barner	Otherson
. 'a' S''a •	N Pacific 4	Hustife	SOVLOCR	Surve.	Interrigence	Intelligence	Barner	") (far ser
- 19 10 State	1 Pacific 4	Friendy	Commerci al	Si - V - P	Mone	SL9C	SLOC	Deter sec
a di tu Dina i	1: Pacific 6	Third World	Commercial			140,14e	seligeries	المراجعة المراجع
· · · - 5, r • · ·	'. Pacific 6	Friendly	Commercial	N	Intel sçesses	ង រាជធូនីពេក គ	00 Y.	واللاطارين المترا
a Baca a Partie a	A Pacific 6	Third World	Commercial	Ν.	14 C C 14 + 1	a nabija.	54.06	Carle an
	N Pacific 6	Friendly	Commercia	ż	None	10C : 11 -	51.00	
	N Pacific 6	Third World	Commercial	N ₁ C	None		SLOC	المركب المعلول
Par wite	hi Pacific 6	Fhird World	Cornerration	2	N: De		SLOC.	
	人はためたい13	Third World	Сотпес на	Ĩ.	···· /2	ç	31 O U	
•	5 . 1 . E	والمراجع والمراجع	Courses of the		t. Z		e andragation	
	• • •							

21

Name	Theater	Traffic	Coast	Egress	Peace Use
Bable: Mandeb	Arabian 5	SOVLOCU	Third World	No	SLOC
Dardanelles	Mediterranean 3	SOVLOCU	Friendly	Soviet	Inte I
English Channel	N. Atlantic 3	Commercial	Friendły	No	SLOC
Formosa Strait	N Pacific 12	SOVLOCU	Neutral	No	Nore
Great Channel	Indian 6	SOVLOCU	Third World	No	3100
Korea Strait	N. Pacific 4	SOVLOCU	Friendly	Soviet	inte
Panama Cana:	Caribbean 15	Commercial	Friendly	No	Cana:
Strait of Gibraltar	Mediterranean 3	Commercial	Neutral	No	SLOC
Strait of Malacca	Indian 6	SOVLOCU	Third World	No	SLOC
Straits of Florida	Cariboean 15	Commercial	Hostile	US	SLOV
Suez Canal	Mediterranean 5	SOVLOCU	Third World	No	Canai
Yucatan Channel	Caribbean 15	Commercial	Hostile	No	SLOC

Table 7.3 Strategic passages.

8.0 Twelve strategic passages

This final section individually locates each of the 12 strategic passages on a world map and describes the passage and its data base attributes. Also given are the significance of the passage and relevant treaties.

In retrospect, these results are not startling. With the exception of three North American passages (whose implicit value includes the defense of Europe), the remaining 9 strategic passages relate to the same goals that motivated Marco Polo, Vasco de Gama, and Columbus: establishment of trade routes between Europe (including the Soviet Union, east of the Volga River) and the Far East.

8.1 Bab El Mandeb

Theater and TVD: Arabian 5 Iraffic: SOVLOCU

Coast: Third World (Yemen) Egress: No

Peace__use: SLOC

Description: This strait is the southern entrance to the Red Sea and thence to the Suez Canal. Yemen, a communist state, occupies the eastern coast; the western coast comprises Ethiopia and the French Territory of Afars and Issas. There is very little intracoastal trade; the crucial traffic is that of the Suez Canal.

This passage is 20 miles (32 km) wide and is divided into two channels by the rocky, barren island of Perim. The western channel is 16 miles across and 311 m deep; the eastern channel is 2 miles wide and 30 m deep. During the north-northwest summer winds, surface water and a layer of highly saline bottom water flow out of the Red Sea into the Gulf of Aden; between these layers, a countercurrent flows from the Indian Ocean. In winter, surface waters enter the Red Sea from the Gulf of Aden, but Red Sea water continues to discharge at depth.

International Treaties: None

Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1974

8.2 Dardanelles

Theater and TVD: Mediterranean 3

Traffic: SOVLOCU **Coast:** Friendly (Turkey)

Egress: Soviet

Peace_use: Intelligence

Description: This passage, including the Bosporus, is the only entrance to the Black Sea. Most of the shipping involves the Soviet Southern Sea Route. Egress for the Soviet Black Sea Fleet increases its strategic importance.

This narrow strait extends northeastward for 38 miles (61 km) to link the Aegean Sea with the Sea of Marmara. Its width varies from 34 to 4 miles and lies between Gallipoli (northwest) and the mainland of Asia Minor (southeast). Average depth is 55 m, reaching a maximum of 100 m in the narrowest central section. There is a rapid surface current from the Sea of Marmara to the Aegean Sea and a compensatory undercurrent returning more saline water.

International Treaties: The Montreux Convention of 20 July 1936 established the right of Turkey to fortify the straits. Further, it differentiated between warships of Black Sea states and those of non-Black Sea states. With the exception of aircraft carriers and submarines, all warships of Black Sea states were allowed unrestricted passage through the straits in peacetime; only light warships of non-Black Sea states had this right under limitations of tonnage, number of units simultaneously present and duration of cruising time. In time of war the straits would be closed to all participants in the conflict if Turkey were neutral.

This convention was scheduled for revision in 1956, out the signatories were unable to agree on the premises of such a revision.

Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1974

8.3 English Channel Theater and TVD: N. Atlantic 3 Traffic: Commercial Coast: Friendly (France)

Egress: No

Peace use: SLOC

Description: The channel is the southern entrance to such major European ports as Antwerp, Rotterdam, London, Bremen, and Hamburg.

Access to Europe's greatest harbors underscores the channel's strategic importance. Situated on the Scheldr River, 55 miles from the North Sea, Antwerp is one of the biggest seaports in the world, ranking only after Rotterdam and New York. As the Scheldt, together with the Meuse and Rhine rivers, forms the biggest estuary in western Europe, Antwerp may be considered as an essential part of the greatest harbor complex in the world.

The English Channel gradually narrows from west to east from a maximum of about 112 miles (180 km) to a minimum of 21 miles between Dover, England, and Calais, France. As it becomes more narrow, the average depth decreases from 122 m to 46 m.

The sea floor dips fairly steeply near the coasts, but is generally flat and remarkably shallow. Its greatest depth is 172 m in the Hurd Deep, one of a group of anomalous deep, enclosed troughs in the bed of the western Channel. In the central Channel, 46-m to 61-m depths are fairly uniform over chalk outcrops, but alterations of clays and limestone give rise to an undulating terrain and deeps reach almost twice the average.

Tides are generally strong, especially in the Dover Strait, and may be visualized as an oscillation about a north-south line through the center of the channel. The central portion experiences daily double tides, and the Golfe de Saint Malo experiences, at 8.5 m or more, the greatest tidal range. There is an overall water flow through the channel to the North Sea; a complete replacement takes about 500 days.

International Treaties: None

Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1974

8.4 Formosa Strait

Theater and IVD. N. Pacific 12 **Traffic:** SOV1 OCU

Coast: Neutral (China)

Egress: No

Peace use: None

Description: The west coast of this passage is China, a communist state. Most of the shipping involves European and Soviet commerce with Japan and the Soviet Far Fast.

This strait is 100 miles (160 km) wide between China's Eukien Province coast and the island of Taiwan. It extends from southwest to northeast between the South and Fast China Seas. Average depth is 70 m. The strait contains the Pescadores Islands.

International Treaties: None.

Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1975

8.5 Great Channel

Theater and TVD: Endian 6 Traffic: SOVi (36.5 Coast: Thead Weight (india) Egress: No

Peace use: S1400

Description: This channel is the primary western entrance to the Strait of Malacca. There is little intracoastal trade, the bulk of the fractice is international and passes through the Strait of Malacca.

This waterway is located near the Nicobar I-lands, a group of 19 islands in the Bay of Bengai, southeast of India With the nearby Andaman Island, they comprise a union territory of India

International Treaties: Noue Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1975

8.6 Korea Strait

Theater and TVD: N. Pacific 4 Traffic: SOVLOCU Coast: Friendly (Korea) Egress: Soviet

Peace use: Intelligence

Description: Most shipping through the stratt involves Soviet and European commerce with Japan and the Far-East. Being the principal sea route to South Korea, the sole democracy on the East Asian mainland coast, adds to its strategic significance.

This passage extends northeast from the East China Sea to the Sea of Japan between the south coast of Korea (northwest) and the Japanese islands of Kyushu and Honshu. The stratt, which is 90 m deep, is bisected by the Tsushima Islands. The passage to the east is sometimes referred to as Tsushima Strait. The western passage was formerly referred to as the Chosen Strait.

The warm I sushima Current, a branch of the Karssess Current, passes north through the strait. Following one coasts of the Japanese islands, some of the current's warers continue north to flow into the Pacific and the search Okhotsk at Sakhalm Island, while the remainder swirs counterclockwise to flow south along the Asiate memory t

International Treaties: None-

Reference: Incvelopedia Britannica, 1986

8.7 Panama Canal

Theater and TVD: Caribbeau 15

Iraffic: Compercial

Coast: Ersendix (Panerses)

Egress: No.

Peace use: Caria

Description: Visiols of viral between the Atlantic construction of the construction of the second end of the second end

between the Atlantic and Pacific coasts of the North and South American continents can be reduced by 3000–4000 nm; maritime traffic between Furope and western Asia and Australia can save 1000-2000 nm. Hence, the Panama Canal is of the greatest international importance, strategically and economically.

The 51-mile-long (82 km) canal was first opened to traffic on 15 August 15 1914. From a low of 807 transits in 1916, traffic rose to a high point of 15,523 transits of all types in 1970. The cargo carried through the canal that year amounted to over 132,500,000 tons.

In 1970 an average of 41 oceangoing ships, with an average size of 7800 tons each, passed through the canal each day. It has been calculated that by 1990, traffic will increase to 70 ships per day.

International Treaties: The Hay Pauncetote Treaty of November 18, 1901, stipulated that the canal would be free and open to the vessels of commerce and war of all nations, which observed the rules established for the Suez Canal by the Convention of Constantinople, 1888, by which the Suez Canal was made a corridor for all ships of all nations in peace and in war.

The Panama Canal Zone, established 4 May 1904, was abolished on 1 October 1979, with the return to Panama of direct civil control under a treaty signed in 1977. By the same treaty, a commission under joint United States-Panamanian ownership was established to operate the canal until the year 2000, when Panama will assume full control. **Reference:** *Encyclopedia Britannica*, 1986

8.8 Strait of Gibraltar

Theater and TVD: Mediterranea:: 3 Traffic: Commercial Coast: Neutral (Morocco) Egress: No

Peace use: SLOC

Description: This passage is vital to the southern flank of Europe. All traffic headed for the Suez Canal or the Mediterranean must enter here.

This channel is 36 miles (58 km) long and narrows to 8 miles wide between Point Mairoqui (Spain) and Point Cires (Morocco). The strait's western extreme is 27 miles wide between the capes of Tratalgar (north) and Spartel (south), and the castern extreme is 14 miles wide between the Rock of Gibraltar and Mt. Acho, just east of Cueta, a Spanish enclave in Morocco.

Average depth of the strait is 310 m. X_{2}^{2} knot surface current flows eastward through the center of the channel, except when affected by easterly winds. This surface movement exceeds a westward flow of heavier, colder, and more saline water, which takes place a a depth of about 122 m

International Treaties: Notesting

Reference: Encyclopedia Bistannica, 1980

8.9 Strait of Malacca

Theater and TVD: Indian 6

Traffic: SOVECE 1

Coast: United World Chadoricship.

Egress: No

Peace esclarates

Description: I cane on the shortest sea route between India and China, the strait is one of the most heavily traveled shipping channels in the world, almost a natural Suez Canal. At the southern end of this strait is Singapore, the largest port in southeast Asia and the fourth largest in the world. Shipping is primarily international; intracoastal traffic is negligible. In addition to its use as a waterway by other forms of shipping, the strait affords passage to giant of tankers that voyage between Middle East oilfields and ports in eastern Asia.

This 500-mile-long waterway (800 km) is extremely vital; it links the Indian Ocean with the South China Sea. Its width varies from 155 miles (249 km) in the north to 40 miles in the south

In the southern portion of the strait, water depths rarely exceed 37 m and are usually about 27 m. Toward the northwest, the bottom gradually deepens until it reaches the 200-m isobath that marks the boundary of the Andaman Basin. Throughout the year, the current flows northwest at rates of up to 1.7 knots.

International Treaties: None

Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1986

8.10 Straits of Florida

Theater and TVD: Caribbean 15 Traffic: Commercial Coast: Hostile (Cuba) Egress: U.S. Peace use: SLOC

Description: Connecting the Gulf of Mexico with the Atlantic Ocean, the length of this important waterway is about 110 miles (180 km) between the Florida Keys on the north and Cuba and the Bahamas on the south and south east. All eastbound and northbound traffic from the Guit of Mexico passes through this waterway, including over half of U.S. petroleum, oil, and lubricants (POI). Cuba is a littoral communist state for both the Yucatan Channel and the Straits of Florida.

These straits math the area where the Florida Current, the initial part of the Gulf Stream, flows eastward out of the Culf of Mexico with a mean speed of 4-6 knots and a width of the for 95 miles. Current transport is about 25,000,000 complet water per second. It is recognized by to how manufacture prattice above 44-1

International Treaties: North

Reference: Emissical widea Britannica, 1986

8.11 Suez Canal

Theater and IVD: Mediterranean 5 Traffic: SOVLOCU

Coast: Third World (Feypt)

Egress: No

Peace use: Canal

Description: The canal extends 105 miles (168 km) from Port Said on the Mediterranean to the Gulf of Suez in the south. It provides the shortest route between Europe and the lands lying around the Indian and western Pacific Oceans. The distance from I ondon to Bombay, by cape and by canal, is 10,800 nm and 6,300 nm, respectively, a savings of 42%; similarly, the distance from Marseille to Bombay is shortened from 10,400 nm to 4,600 nm, a 56^{00} saving in distance.

The canal was opened to traffic in November 1869. In 1870, the canal's first full year of operation, there were 486 transits, or fewer than two per day. Carrying oil from the Caucasus region to the Far East, the first tanker transited the canal in 1892. In 1900, 88 tankers transited the canal. After successive widenings and deepenings, the canal, by 1967, featured a minimum width of 179 feet and an uninterrupted depth of almost 12 m at low tide. In 1966-67 there were 20,326 canal transits, an average of 56 per day, with net tonnage increasing from 437,000 (1870) to 267,000,000. By 1978, the average had increased to 58 ships per day. The canal was enlarged between 1975 and 1980 and presently accommodates ships of 53 feet draft.

International Treaties: The Convention of Constantin ople 1888 stipulated the canal would be, "a corridor for all ships of all nations in peace and in war." Acts of hostility in its waters were forbidden.

Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1986

8.12 Yucatan Channel

Theater and IND: Caribbean 15

Institut Communication

Constraine tile (Constraine)

I present service

K

Paul ast SLOC

The scription: All Pahama Canal trathic, bound for the Gulf More or most east coast ports, passes through this waterway. This channels onnects the Gulf of Mexico and the Caribbean Sea, extending 135 miles (217 km) between Cuper Catoche, Mexico, and Cape San Antonio, Cuba. The north and south equatorial currents enter the channel from tion of theast and form the beginnings of the Gulf Stream. a protocal of Mexico. The current flowing through the Y cost of Channel is strongest in the summer, attaining specific exceeding 4 knots

International Treaties: None

Reference: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1986.

9.0 Bibliography

int I. Moore, J. L., Call, Kissek

to Jane's. Sea Power, J. Sept. 6 Sec.

2. Friedman, N. (1985) J.S. M. C. S. Defense Rev. 1 Juny

3. Hurt, B. H. L. 196 S. Salari

4. Dunn, K. and W. Stalid (1994). Strategic Concepts. The Next to call of the Strategy, National Security Strategies, S. J. Charles and Praeger, 1984.

5. Lorb, 1. (1984). How Well Can We Fight For How Long? National Security Strategy, S. J. Cambala (ed.). Praeger, 1984.

6. Lehman, Hon. John (1984). Nine Principles for the Future of Andersian Mataratic Power Proc. 3 S. Nasa-Institute, 1 Lebruals

7. Watkins, Adm. J. D. USN (1984). Oceanoeranis Policy, Chief of Navas Operations, 19 April

8. Stavridis, Et. Com. James (1984). Naval Strategy and National Ocean Policy Proc., US Naval Institute, 1 July,

9. Marcus, H. S. (1983) Neither Guns Nor Butter. University of Washington.

10. Bond, L. (1984). A New Strategy for the North East Atlantic. International Defense Review, 1803-1804. I December.

11. Watkins, Adm. J. D., USN (1986). The Maritime Strategy, Proc., U. S. Naval Institute, 1 January

12. McDonald, Adm. Wesley ((1985). Mine Wartare: A Pillar of Maritime Strategy, Proc., U.S. Nava Institute, 1 October.

13. Halstead, Ambassador John (1984). The Atlantic The Linchpin, Proc. U.S. Naval Institute, 1 December

14. Wood, R. S. (1985). The Maritanie Role of the North Atlantic, Naval War College Rev., 5, 18, 1 November

15. West, F. J., Jr. (1985). Maritime Strategy and NATO Deteriorice Nasar War College Rev. 5 19, 1990 (1990)

 Hermbotham, S. J. (1985). The Forward Mantume Strategy and Nordic Europe, Naval War, Concern Re-19.27 I.N. - milet

17. In contrast, 14. Cont Charles (1984). Providence

Northern Early, J. S. Naval Institute, 287, 2021 O'Dotting, Marie H 42h (1985), Not. Maritime Officience Proceedust Naves of their I September

one Streege Command e de store W. Sec. the Sis-A. [1] D. Barris Resauces Constraints 1 Dec. et al.

20 3. . ECH-NATO CO-S-CO e na se Renessi à Larre esse J Dick 👘

and whether switch the earlier 21 W on - Navio Barley, College Revisio Filosofies In 1985 e State Martine Science and Souther: 22 W S $(X_{1}, Y_{1}) = (W_{1}, Y_{2}) = (V_{1}, V_{2}) = K_{1}$ Iransp. S. . 1.54 IN WORK

23 11 2 CLORES POSTAL New Manufacture and Max Follow a strain Representation Determined 21 Determine

 $-\sum_{i=1}^{n} \left(1 - \frac{1}{2} \right) \left(1 - \frac{1}{2} \right) \left(\frac{1}$ Render D. Const. Harris Strategy

Appendix:



Law of the Sea

A Select Bibliography

Office of the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for the Law of the Sea



United Nations New York, 1985

4. TERRITORIAL SEA

Gibson, John. The ownership of the sea bed under British territorial waters. International relations (London) 6(2): 1978, 474-499

Gosh, Shekhar. The legal régime of innocent passage through the territorial sea. Indian journal of international law (New Delhi) 20(2): April/June 1980, 216-242

(

(

.

ŝ

Ś.,

- Jong, H.G. de. Extension of the territorial sea of the Kingdom of the Netherlands. <u>Netherlands international law review</u> (Groningen, Neth.) 30(2): 1983, 129-145
- Nakamura, Ko. The passage through the territorial sea of foreign warships carrying nuclear weapons: an interpretation of the Convention on the Territorial Sea and the Contiguous Zone and its application to the broken Soviet nuclear-powered submarine. Japanese annual of international law (Tokyo) No.25: 1982, 1-10
- Rodriguez, Yves. Le droit administratif de la mer territoriale. Droit maritime français (Paris) 35(416): août 1983, 451-467
- Smith, Brian. Innocent passage as a rule of decision: Navigation versus environmental protection. <u>Columbia journal of transmational law</u> (New York) 21(1): 1982, 49-102

5. STRAITS USED FOR INTERNATIONAL NAVIGATION

- Alexandersson, Gunnar. The Baltic Straits. Alphen aan den Rijn, The Netherlands: Sijthoff and Noordhoff, 1982, xi, 132 p. maps. <u>International</u> straits of the world, Vol.6
- Amin, S.H. The régime of international straits: legal implications for the Strait of Hormuz. <u>Journal of maritime law and commerce</u> (Cincinnati, Chio) 12(3): April 1981, 387-405
- Butler, William E. Northeast Arctic Passage. Alphen aan den Rijn, The Netherlands: Sijthoff and Noordhoff, 1978, xxi, 199 p. maps. <u>International</u> straits of the world, Vol.1
- De Vries Lentsch, P. The right of overflight over strait States and archipelagic States: developments and prospects. <u>Netherlands yearbook of</u> international law (Leyden) Vol.14: 1983, 165-225
- Koh, Kheng-lian. Contemporary issues relating to straits used for international navigation. Geneva, Switzerland. Institut universitaire de hautes études internationales, 1980, x, 229 p.
- Koh, Kheng-lian. Straits in international navigation. Oceana Publications (New York) 1982, xi, 225 p.
- Kuribayashi, Tadao. The basic structure of the new régime of passage through international straits: an emerging trend in the Third UNCLOS and Japan's situation. <u>In</u> Japanese annual of international law, No.21, 1977. Tokyo. The International Law Association of Japan, 1978, p. 29-47
- Lapidoth-Eschelbacher, Ruth. The Red Sea and the Gulf of Aden. Alphen aan den Rijn: Sijthoff and Noordhoff, 1982, xiv, 265 p. maps. International straits of the world, Vol.5

- Lapidoth-Eschelbacher, Ruth. The Straits of Tiran, the Gulf of Aqaba, and the 1979 Treaty of Feace between Egypt and Israel. <u>American journal of</u> international law (Washington, D.C.) 77(1): January 1983, 84-108
- Leifer, Michael. International straits of the world: Malacca, Singapore and Indonesia. Alphen aan den Rijn: Sijthoff and Noordhoff, 1978, xi, 217 p. maps. International straits of the world, Vol.2
- Maduro, Morris F. Passage through international straits: the prospects emerging from the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea. Journal of maritime law and commerce (Cincinnati, Chio) 12(1): October 1980, 65-95

Mesznik, Roger. Transit fees for ocean straits and their impact on global economic welfare. Ocean development and international law (New York) 8(4): 1980, 337-354

Q

G

20

- Moore, John Norton. The régime of straits and the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea. <u>Mmerican journal of international law</u> (Washington, D.C.) 74(1): January 1980, 77-121 Includes bibliographical references
- Muench, Wolfgang. Reflections on the emerging straits régime and the Draft Convention on the Law of the Sea. <u>Indian journal of international law</u> (New Delhi) 21(2): April/June 1981, 231-237
- Pharand, Donat. The Northwest passage in international law. Canadian yearbook of international law (Vancouver) 17: 1979, 99-133
- Pirtle, Charles E. Transit rights and U.S. security interests in international straits: the "straits debate" revisited. Ocean development and international law (New York) 5(4): 1978, 477-497 With special reference to the Third U.N. Law of the Sea Conference
- Ramazani, R.K. The Persian Gulf and the Strait of Hormuz. Alphen aan den Rijn: Sijthoff and Noordhoff, 1979, xi, 180 p. maps. <u>International straits</u> of the world, Vol.3
- Reisman, Michael. The régime of straits and national security: An appraisal of international lawmaking. <u>American journal of international law</u> (Washington, D.C.) 74(1): January 1980, 48-74. Includes bibliographical references
- Robertson, Horace B. Passage through international straits: a right preserved in the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea. <u>Virginia</u> journal of international law (Charlottesville, Va.) 20(4): Summer 1980, 801-857
- Ryan, K.W. The Torres Strait Treaty. <u>Australian yearbook of international</u> law (Canberra) Vol.7: 1981, 87-113
- Vertzberger, Yaacov. The Malacca/Singapore Straits. <u>Asian survey</u> (Berkeley, Calif.) 22(7): July 1982, 609-629

Vertzberger, Yaacov. The Malacca/Singapore Straits: The Suez of South-East Asia. Conflict studies (London) No.140: 1982, 28 p.

6. EXCLUSIVE ECONOMIC ZONE

Al-Mour, Awadh Monamed. The legal status of the exclusive economic zone. Revue égyptienne de droit international (Cairo) 33: 1977, 35-69

Burke, William T. Exclusive fisheries zones and freedom of navigation. San Diego law review (San Diego, Calif.) 20(3): April 1983, 595-623

Castañeda, Jorge. La zona económica exclusiva y el nuevo orden económico internacional. <u>Foro internacional</u> (México, D.F.) 19: julio/septiembre 1978, 1-16

Conforti, Benedetto. The exclusive economic zone: some transitional law problems. <u>Italian yearbook of international law</u> (Naples) Vol.5: 1980-1981, 14-21

- Extavour, Winston Conrad. The exclusive economic zone: a study of the evolution and progressive development of the international law of the sea. Genève: Institut universitaire de hautes études internationales, 1979. xv, 369 p. (Collection de droit international: 5) Bibliography: p. 327-349. Includes index
- Fluharty, David and Christine Dawson. Management of living resources in the Northeast Pacific and the unilateral extension of the 200-mile fisheries zone. Ocean development and international law (New York) 6: 1979, 1-72
- Greenwich Forum Conference on Britain and the Sea: the 200 mile zone and its implications (Third: 1977, Greenwich). A conference at the Royal Naval College, Greenwich, 5th-7th October 1977. <u>The Greenwich Forum</u> (London) Institute of Marine Engineers, 1979, 44 p.
- Hudson, Carolyn. Fishery and economic zones as customary international law. San Diego law review (San Diego, Calif.) 17(3): 1980, 661-689
- Joyner, Christopher C. The exclusive economic zone and Antarctica. <u>Virginia journal of international law</u> (Charlottesville, Va.) 21(4): Summer 1981, 691-725
- Khan, Rahmatullah. Indian Ocean fisheries: the 200-mile economic zone. New Delhi: Ankur, 1977. xiv, 264 p. Bibliography: p. 237-257

Kovalyov, F. The economic zone and its legal status. <u>International affairs</u> (Moscow) No.2: 1979, 58-64

Leonhard, Alan T. Ixtoc I: a test for the emerging concept of the patrimonial sea. San Diego law review (San Diego, Calif.) 17(3): 1980, 617-627

Loftas, Tony. FAO's EEZ programme-assisting a new era in fisheries. <u>Marine</u> policy (Guilford, U.K.) 5(3): July 1981, 229-239

19. MARINE SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH

- Alexander, Lewis M. Organizational responses to new ocean science and technology developments. <u>Ocean development and international law</u> (New York) 9(3/4): 1981, 241-268
- Humphrey, G.F. UNCLOS and the marine scientist. Marine policy (Guilford, U.K.) 5(3): July 1981, 270-271

Ċ

1

- Jacobson, Jon L. Marine scientific research under emerging ocean law. Ocean development and international law (New York) 9(3/4): 1981, 187-199
- Mangone, Gerard J. The effect of extended coastal States jurisdiction over the seas and seabed upon marine science research. Ocean development and international law (New York) 9(3/4): 1981, 201-218
- Manzur, Allen. Large-scale ocean research projects: What makes them succeed or fail? <u>Social studies of science</u> (Beverly Hills, Calif.) 11(4): November 1981, 425-449
- Martray, Joseph. La recherche océanologique et le projet de Convention sur le Droit de la Mer. <u>Annuaire de droit maritime et aérien</u> (Nantes, France) Vol.6: 1982, 387-395
- Miles, Edward. IOC data and information exchange: implications of the Law of the Sea Convention. <u>Marine policy</u> (Guilford, U.K.) 7(2): April 1983, 75-89
- Mukherjee, P.K. The consent régime of oceanic research in the new law of the sea. Marine policy (Guilford, U.K.) 5(2): April 1981, 98-113
- Oceanology International '80. Ocean management (Amsterdam) 7(1/4): June 1981, 352 p. This special issue presents a selection of the proceedings of the Oceanology International '80 Conference held in Brighton, U.K., from March 2nd-7th, 1980
- Palacio, Francisco J. The development of marine science in Latin America. Oceanus (Woods Hole, Mass.) 23(2); Summer 1980, 39-49
- Rao, R. Jaganmohan. The international legal régime of ODAS and other offshore research installations. <u>Indian journal of international law</u> (New Delhi) 22(3/4): July/December 1982, 375-395

- Talwani, Manik. Marine research and the Law of the Sea. Symposium on the uses of the oceans. <u>Columbia journal of world business</u> (New York) 15(4): Winter 1980, 84-91
- Treves, Tullio. Principe du consentement et recherche scientifique dans le nouveau droit de la mer. <u>Revue générale de droit international public</u> (Paris) 84(1): 1980, 253-268
- Vanderpool, Christopher K. Marine science and the law of the sea. Social studies of science (Beverly Hills, Calif.) 13(1): February 1983, 107-129
- Yusuf, Abdulgawi A. Toward a new legal framework for marine research: coastal State consent and international coordination. <u>Virginia journal</u> of international law (Charlottesville, Va.) 19(2): 1979, 411-429

UNCLASSIFIED

Ì

....

÷

K

•

.

-

.

ŧ.

ŀ

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE

1. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICAT	TION		15. RESTRICTIVE N	ARKINGS			
28 SECURITY CLASSIFICATION AUT	HORITY		3. DISTRIBUTION/A	VAILABILITY OF REPO	AT		
20 DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRAD	ING SCHEDULE		Approved unlimited.	for public rele	ase; dis	tribution is	
4 PERFORMING ORGANIZATION RE	PORT NUMBER.	S)	5 MONITORING OF	RGANIZATION REPORT	NUMBER(S))	
8 NAME OF PERFORMING ORGANIZ			78. NAME OF MON	TORING ORGANIZATI	ON		
Naval Ocean Resear	ch and De	velopment Activity	Naval Oce	ean Research	and Dev	elopment Activity	
6c ADDRESS (City, State, and ZIP C	ode)		7b ADDRESS (City	, State, and ZIP Code)			
Requirements and A NSTL, Mississippi 39		Office		ents and Asse ssissippi 39529		Office	
Ba NAME OF FUNDING/SPONSORING ORGANIZATION Bb OFFICE SYMBOL 9. PROCUREMENT INSTRUMENT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER Naval Ocean Research and (II applicable) 9. PROCUREMENT INSTRUMENT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER Development Activity 0.00000000000000000000000000000000000						MBER	
Bc ADDRESS (City, State, and ZIP Code) 10. SOURCE OF FUNDING NOS.							
Requirements and Assessment Office NSTL, Mississippi 39529–5004PROGRAM ELEMENT NO. 62759NPROJECT NO.TASK NO.WORK UNIT NO							
11 TITLE (Include Security Classification) Strategic Passages							
12 PERSONAL AUTHOPISI George E. Lanford, Jr. 13e TYPE OF REPORT 13e TYPE OF REPORT 13e TYPE OF REPORT							
13a TYPE OF REPORT						15 PAGE COUNT	
Final From To January 1987 40 16 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTATION 40							
17 COSATI CODES 18 SUBJECT TERMS (Continue on reverse if necessary and identify by block number)							
FIELD GROUP	SUB GR	military science	e, naval strate	gy, national de	efense,		
		naval oceanogi	rapny, enviror	imental suppoi	n an		
 19 ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse Selection of the forer military strategy and co examination discloses Defense and resul The economic vita The Soviet Union Since military powe passage is the nature at traffic and peace use. The immense cost discovered that lessen Aside from defense as well as the Soviet Sou are important to both t From these six conclu- Bab el Mandeb, Dardan of Gibraltar, Strait of M 20 DISTRIBUTION/AVAILABILITY OF 	nost strateg ontemporary six axiomat oply of NAT lity of the A crucially ne r is founded nd volume o of man-mad their initial and control uthern Sea R he Alliance sions, 12 m elles, Englis lalacca, Stra	ic maritime passages views of global strat ic conclusions: O is a major United Illiance must be main eds economic growth upon economic vitality f what passes through e passages (canals) w value to world comm of the canals, maritim oute, are crucial to ec and the Soviets give aritime passages are of the Channel, Formosa	tegy from U.S., States commitr ntained. h, particularly ir y and endurance h it during norma warrants them special re passages affe onomic survival is them special deemed to be cr Strait, Great Ch Canal, and Yut 21 ABSTRACT SEC	NATO, and U.S ment. the Far East. the most import al conditions, that pecial attention cting the major p and growth. That significance. ucial to policies of catan Channel. CURITY CLASSIFICATION	S.S.R. per ant attribu- it is, the n No argum orts and f some ma of the majo ait, Panal	rspectives. This ute of a maritime natrix attributes, hents have been fanks of Europe, aritime passages or world powers:	
UNCLASSIFIED/UNLIMITED	SAME AS RPT		Unclassifi	ed			
228 NAME OF RESPONSIBLE INDIVI	DUAL		226 TELEPHONE N	UMBER (Include Area	Code	22: OFFICE SYMBOL	
George E. Stanford,	Jr.		(601) 688-	5211		Code 115	

DD FORM 1473, 83 APR

UNCLASSIFIED SECURITY CLASSIF TATION OF THIS PAGE

END DATE FILMED DTIC 4/88